To the Mayor and Councillors of the London Borough of Lambeth

YOU ARE SUMMONED TO ATTEND A MEETING of the COUNCIL to be held in the Lambeth Town Hall,
Brixton Hill, SW2 1RW on Wednesday 17 July 2019 at 7.00 pm

ANDREW TRAVERS
Interim CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Wayne Chandai, Telephone: 020 7926 0029; Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Published on: Tuesday 9 July 2019
@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

AGENDA
Appendices to reports – bulky appendices are published on the website www.lambeth.gov.uk and can
be obtained from Democratic Services. They are not circulated with the agenda.
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes

1-6

To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 April
2019.

3.

Announcements

4.

Petitions, PNQs and Deputations
No public notice questions were received.
Petitions will be presented at the meeting by Councillors.
The deadline for the receipt of requests for a deputation is 5pm
12 July 2019. Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk

5.

Cabinet Statement

6.

Opposition Statement

7.

Questions from Councillors

8.

Reports

7 - 24

a)

Corporate Committee Annual Report

25 - 44

b)

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report

45 - 64

c)

Youth Council Annual Report

9.

Motions

65 - 74

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)
Further assistance
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

COUNCIL
Wednesday 24 April 2019 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
The Worshipful the Mayor in the Chair

COUNCILLORS PRESENT:
Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor David Amos, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu,
Councillor Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Matthew Bennett, Councillor Anna Birley,
Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor
Lucy Caldicott, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor
Joe Corry-Roake, Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Edward Davie, Councillor Jon
Davies, Councillor Jim Dickson, Mayor Ibrahim Dogus, Councillor Stephen Donnelly,
Councillor Jacqui Dyer, Councillor Pete Elliott, Councillor Paul Gadsby, Councillor
Pauline George, Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Dr.
Mahamed Hashi, Councillor Claire Holland, Councillor Jack Hopkins, Councillor
Mohamed Jaser, Councillor Maria Kay, Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Ben
Kind, Councillor Jessica Leigh, Councillor Joshua Lindsey, Councillor Nanda
Manley-Browne, Councillor Marianna Masters, Councillor Jackie Meldrum, Councillor
Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Philip Normal, Councillor Joanna Reynolds, Councillor
Mohammed Seedat, Councillor Iain Simpson, Councillor Becca Thackray, Councillor
Martin Tiedemann, Christopher Wellbelove, Councillor Clair Wilcox, Councillor Andy
Wilson and Councillor Sonia Winifred
APOLOGIES:

Councillor Scott Ainslie, Councillor Liz Atkins,
Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite,
Councillor Peter Ely, Councillor Annie Gallop,
Councillor Adrian Garden, Councillor Emma Nye,
Councillor Jane Pickard, Councillor Joanne Simpson,
Councillor Tina Valcarcel and Councillor Timothy
Windle

ABSENT:

Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor Kevin Craig and
Councillor Jennie Mosley

1.

ELECTION OF MAYOR
It was moved by Councillor Hopkins, seconded by Councillor Leigh and:

Page 2

RESOLVED: to elect Councillor Ibrahim Dogus as Mayor of the London
Borough of Lambeth for the municipal year 2019/20.
Councillor Dogus made the declaration of acceptance of office, witnessed by
the Chief Executive, and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office.
The meeting was adjourned from 1910 to 1919 to enable the investiture to
take place in the Mayor’s Parlour.
Councillor Dogus in the Chair.
The Mayor thanked Council for electing him as Mayor and introduced his
Mayoral charities for 2019/20 – Lambeth Refugees Welcome and the
Migration Museum. The Mayor stated he was proud to be Lambeth’s first
Kurdish Mayor and committed to be a Mayor for all of Lambeth.
The Mayor introduced Reverend Cathy Wiles from Lambeth Refugees
Welcome and Sophie Henderson from the Migration Museum to explain the
work carried out by their organisations.
2.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR
It was moved by Councillor Holland, seconded by Councillor Chowdhury and:
RESOLVED: to elect Councillor Philip Normal as Deputy Mayor of the
London Borough of Lambeth for the municipal year 2019/20.
Councillor Normal made the declaration of acceptance of office, witnessed by
the Chief Executive, and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office.

3.

REPORT OF MAYORAL ACTIVITIES FOR 2018-19 BY THE OUTGOING
MAYOR, CLLR CHRISTOPHER WELLBELOVE
Councillor Wellbelove, the outgoing Mayor, gave a report on his Mayoral
activities for 2018-19 which covered:


The work he had carried out to raise awareness of the theme of his
Mayoral Year, which was mental ill health and suicide prevention.



Attending the first joint Civic Service for the Mayors of Southwark and
Lambeth at Southwark Cathedral.



The many community events he had attended including School
assemblies, harvest festivals, Windrush 70 Celebrations, the Lambeth
Country Show, Portugal Day and Pride Celebrations.



The work undertaken by his chosen Mayoral Charity, Mosaic
Clubhouse, and the many charity events he had held to raise money
for the charity.

Councillor Wellbelove thanked Council for electing him as Mayor.
Councillors Briggs, Thackray and Caldicott spoke to thank Councillor
ii

Page 3
Wellbelove for his service as Mayor.
4.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor paid tribute to those who had lost their lives, and their loved ones
and relatives who had been affected by, the terrorist attacks in Christchurch
New Zealand on 15 March 2019 and Sri Lanka on Easter Sunday.
Council observed a one minute silence to pay respect to the victims of these
attacks.
Councillor Manley-Browne was welcomed to the Council following her
election as member for Thornton Ward at a by-election on 11 April.

5.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were none.

6.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2019 were deferred to the
next meeting.

7.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, CABINET PORTFOLIOS, OTHER
ADMINISTRATION AND OPPOSITION APPOINTMENTS
Councillors Briggs, Bartley and Hopkins spoke on this item and made the
following points:


The responsibilities of Policy Leads were not clear, despite the fact
that they received a Special Responsibility Allowance. It would be
beneficial to clarify the roles and responsibilities of Policy Leads.



More attention needed to be drawn to the ongoing climate emergency
within the Cabinet Portfolios, as well as the Council’s Corporate Plan,
as every decision made by the Council needed to take into
consideration climate change.



Councillor Holland was congratulated for becoming Deputy Leader.



The new administration brought together a strong team of individuals
with a wide range of experience to tackle the issues that mattered for
Lambeth including reducing inequalitiy and tackling the financial
challenges for the Council as a result of continuing austerity.

RESOLVED:
(1) To note the Cabinet appointments as made by the Leader of the
Council and other group appointments
(2) To note Opposition appointments as set out in the report
8.

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS
Councillor Griffiths addressed Council and stated that the Green Group had
been only allocated the minimum number of seats on Committees legally
iii

Page 4
possible, and that the Green Group should have been offered the position of
Chair or Vice Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Councillor Winifred stated that the Green Group and Conservative Member
were already over represented on Committees compared to their overall seat
allocations.
RESOLVED:
(1) That the report of the Chief Executive setting out the recommended
allocation of seats to political groups, as set out in Table 2 below, be
adopted.
(2) That Council reappoints its Committees with the sizes and allocation of
seats between political groups as set out in Table 2 of the report.
9.

CONSTITUTION 2019-20
Councillor Elliott spoke to thank Council for allowing more questions at Full
Council meetings. He also highlighted that the opposition were still not
represented on every Council Committee; and suggested that this should be
allowed in order to build more openness and transparency into the Council’s
decision making procedures.
Councillor Adilypour responded by stating that the administration had already
worked to increase opportunities for the opposition to scrutinise the work of
the Council through allowing more questions at Council meetings, as well as
a greater number of, and more time to consider, deputations and would
continue to work with the opposition on more ways for them to be engaged.
RESOLVED:
(1) To note the table of proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution
(Appendix
1).
(2) To approve the Council’s Constitution 2019-20, including:









The responsibility for functions, including the executive, local
choice functions and the discharge of functions by way of the
joint committees and other bodies.
Scheme of delegation to Cabinet Members and officers, as set
out in the Constitution.
Establishment of Cabinet, including its terms of reference
Scrutiny arrangements: appointment of the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee with the terms of reference, constitution,
membership and call in. Appointment of a Childrens Services
Scrutiny Sub Committee, with the terms of reference.
Rules of procedure (Part 3 of the constitution).
Codes and protocols (Part 4 of the constitution).
Management structure (Part 6 of the constitution).

(3) To appoint Chairs, Vice-Chairs and other members of committees
(including substitute members except where such members are
iv

Page 5
excluded

by

its

constitution)

(Appendix

2).

(4) To recommend the Appointments, Corporate, Licensing and
Standards Committees to appoint their respective sub-committees with
the terms of reference, constitution and Page 19 Agenda Item 9
membership (including substitute members except where such
members
are
excluded
by
its
constitution).
(5) To invite Cabinet to appoint the bodies to undertake executive
functions as set out in Part 2, Section 2 of the Constitution.
(6) To invite Cabinet to confirm the renewal of all joint arrangements
(whether by way of joint committee or otherwise), as detailed in Part 2,
Section 5 of the Constitution, which, following the adoption by the
Council of executive arrangements, became either the sole
responsibility of the Cabinet, or partly the responsibility of the Cabinet
and
partly
the
responsibility
of
the
Council.
(7) To appoint the representatives of the Council on other bodies and
outside
organisations
(Appendix
3).
(8) To approve the annual schedule of meetings set out in Appendix 4.
10.

WAIVER OF 6 MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE
Councillor Choudhury explained that under Section 85 (1) of the Local
Government Act 1972 a member of a local authority must attend at least one
meeting of that authority over a consecutive six month period to avoid
disqualification as a Councillor. This requirement, however, could be waived
provided the authority approved the reason in advance of the six month
period expiring. The authority was able to specify an extended time limit for
the Councillor.
It was noted that Councillor Gallop had been ill and therefore been unable to
attend a meeting since 1 November 2018. It was unlikely she would be able
to attend meetings for several months.
RESOLVED:
That a waiver of the 6 month Councillor attendance rule is granted for
Councillor Annie Gallop, extending the statutory period to 1 November 2019.

The meeting ended at 8.41 pm
MAYOR
Wednesday 22 May 2019
Date of Despatch: Thursday 2 May 2019
Contact for Enquiries: Wayne Chandai

Tel: 020 7926 0029
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

v

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 8

Council, 17 July 2019
Questions from Councillors
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Interim Strategic Director Corporate Resources, Christina
Thompson
Contact for enquiries: Wayne Chandai, Head of Chief Executive’s Office and Democratic
Services Manager, 020 7926 0029, wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
Questions and answers submitted by Councillors, in accordance with Standing Order 12, are
set out below.

Page 8

1. Councillor Becca Thackray
To: Councillor Andy Wilson, Cabinet Member for Finance and Investment
Children’s Homes Redress Scheme
Under Lambeth’s Children’s Homes Redress scheme, some recipients of compensation have
been advised to set up a Trust which costs about £700. How will the Council help survivors in
receipt of redress payments to ensure they don't incur a loss of benefits as a result of
compensation?
Party: Green
Answer:
In its administration of the Lambeth Redress Scheme the Council is bounded by civil law. In
civil law setting up of trust by an individual who is awarded compensation is considered a
non-recoverable cost which the Council cannot reimburse as is standard with all civil
compensation claims.
However under the Redress Scheme, the Council has agreed to pay all legal fees for
individuals making applications to the scheme for compensation. We would expect legal
representatives and advocates to provide appropriate advice and support regarding
implications of any receipt of a compensation and how best to manage this, based on their
knowledge of the circumstances of individual claimants.
There are a small number of individuals who were resident in some of Lambeth’s specialist
units who now lack capacity and do not have surviving family members. For these
individuals the Council will work with carers and other organisations (i.e. advocacy) to fund
and put arrangements in place help manage and protect any compensation they are
awarded, in their best interest. This could include the setting up of a trust to administer the
compensation payment.

2. Councillor Tim Briggs
To: Councillor Andy Wilson, Cabinet Member for Finance and Investment
Can Labour councillors explain to residents why they have spent £10 million on buying the
B&Q site in West Norwood, but apparently £1.4 million is not available to save Children’s
Centres across Lambeth?
Party: Conservative
Answer:
The reduction in funding to Children’s centres service provision was because of the reduction
in Dedicated Schools Grant, a revenue funding stream, by the Conservative government in

Page 9

Westminster. It is deeply disappointing that Cllr Briggs continues to support these
Conservative cuts to local services.
Purchase of the B&Q site represents the purchase of an asset and was made by capital
expenditure, funded from prudential borrowing. As Cllr Briggs knows, the council cannot fund
day to day services through capital expenditure or through borrowing.
The cost of the borrowing for the purchase is met by the rental income received from the site
and thus there is no impact on the revenue budget. In the longer-term, control of the site gives
the Council options to develop housing or workspace which can generate an ongoing revenue
whilst also improving the town centre for the benefit of all West Norwood residents.

3. Councillor Lucy Caldicott
To: Cabinet Member for Housing, Cllr Paul Gadsby
Organised Begging

What is being done about the increasing instances of organised begging and illegal hotdog
trading activity across the borough, with the aligned issues of homelessness and exploitation
of vulnerable people?
Party: Labour
Answer:
It is incredibly important that we ensure that in all our polices there is a focus on identifying
vulnerable residents and those who are exploiting them in order that we can immediately help
the exploited and bring the full weight of law down on the exploiter. Cllr Caldicott is absolutely
right to raise this important issue, especially given the issues she has experienced in her ward
which she alerted me to during a recent walkabout I had organised by local councillors and
with concerned residents.
In terms of tackling these issues, the council’s public protection team are out responding to
organised begging and illegal trading in joint operations with other agencies on a daily basis.
We will soon be investing in more section 92 police officers to enhance our ability to deal with
issues such as these more effectively in the future.
There remains some challenges around prosecuting illegal hot dog traders. In order to
prosecute an offender we need to be able to identify the person by getting the correct name
and address so that a summons can be issued. This is challenging for our officers as offenders
typically refuse to give details.
In the past 3 months there have been 7 illegal hot dog sellers prosecuted including a repeat
offender who last year was prosecuted for a number of offences and received 12 weeks in
custody. We will also be taking specific actions and allocating resources to the issues in
Stockwell raised by Cllr Caldicott and her colleagues with me.

Page 10

Most importantly, our public protection and safer streets teams work very closely to engage
with homeless people and to encourage and help them off the streets and into accommodation
and services. We have no hesitation in prosecuting exploitative practices as already
mentioned, but we are resolutely focused on providing care to those who genuinely need it
which is why despite devastating cuts to our budget from the current Conservative
government, we continue to invest £4 million every year on rough sleeping and homelessness
services which in part funds around 500 beds and accommodation for these vulnerable
individuals.

4. Councillor Liz Atkins
To: Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, Cllr Ed Davie
NHS Pathology Service
Many campaigners are concerned about the closure of the NHS pathology service. Could
you outline the implications of this change, what the opinion of regional health scrutiny is and
what actions residents can take to show their support for the campaign to halt the continued
privatisation of the NHS?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Pathology services in Lambeth are currently provided by Viapath, a consortium including
GSTT, KCH and Serco and not strictly speaking a solely NHS provided service.
As part of moves to join up provision across the South East London the contracts for pathology
services is being retendered. Viapath is one of the three providers bidding and if successful
there would be no change for Lambeth's pathology services.
Lambeth Labour are developing a series of principles on how we would like to see regional
NHS services developed including a commitment to no major privatisations or closures and
more efforts to provide properly paid work opportunities for local people and organisations
through direct employment and procurement.

5. Councillor Jackie Meldrum
To: Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, Cllr Ed Davie
Sustainable funding for adult social care
Nationally the campaign for a sustainable funding solution for adult social care continues
unabated. The recent Panorama programmes on the Care Crisis provide excellent case
studies on care of older people, people with learning disabilities & disabled adults and the

Page 11

extreme personal cost to family members. The government have been unable to produce a
much promised Green paper on the future of adult social care. Presciently the Conservative
Leadership contest has confirmed the values of the rump of the Tory party. Can you tell us
how Lambeth is coping with the funding pressures and rising demand for adult social care and
staving off the breaking point until we have a Labour government prepared to properly fund
care staff wages and reduce caps on an individual’s care costs?
Party: Labour
Answer:
As more people in our borough reach old age and more people, thankfully, survive conditions
they may not have before advances in medicine there is more and more demand on our
services. Unfortunately, that rise in need is not met by more money, in fact the Liberal
Democrat and Conservative governments since 2010 have cut Lambeth’s grant by 56% nearly
halving Lambeth Council’s workforce from about 4,000 to nearer 2,000 in a decade of cuts.
Social care provision is facing a national shortfall of £3.6 billion by 2025 – and further funding
cuts from central government to the money councils have to spend seems likely, despite
promises from the Conservative government that austerity is over.
Lambeth Labour has been doing its best to work with people who need support, their carers
and our colleagues in the NHS to join up care so that services are better and cost less money.
Lambeth Together is the name of our new joint effort to ensure that everyone in our borough
is supported to live the healthiest, happiest, most independent life they can whilst getting best
value for the taxpayer. In adult mental health we have managed to join up the council and
NHS budget and services for a year with great results, now we aim to join up to bring services
out of hospitals into communities.
We have also been supporting those that work in health and in adult social care, by making
sure through our new responsible procurement policy that the money that the council spends
on delivering services through suppliers requires a certain level of standard for employees,
including paying at least the London living wage. We are currently supporting NHS trusts in
the borough to get living wage accreditation which will help many workers in the health industry
be lifted out of poverty.

6. Councillor Mary Atkins
To: Cabinet Member for Housing, Cllr Paul Gadsby
Damp in St Martin’s Estate
Many residents on St Martins estate are experiencing damp. St Martins estate is a 13,000
stock property that was transferred from Lambeth Council to three housing associations in the
late 1990s. For the past 9 years residents have been campaigning about structural damp on
their estates. Ward councillors have campaigned with residents and the local MP many times
over the past 7 years to get action on the estate. Earlier this year the Tenants and Residents
Association started a “damp campaign" to call on Lambeth to involve environmental services

Page 12

to condemn the estate as unfit for residents to live on. Could the cabinet member outline what
powers and responsibilities Lambeth has for Housing Associations and what action can be
taken to ensure residents of housing associations and other registered social landlords live in
decent housing?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Firstly, I would like to thank the Tulse Hill councillors and local residents for raising the issues
they are facing on the St Martin’s estate. It is very clear, in my view, that all residents are
entitled to safe, secure and decent living standards – and it is the responsibility of the social
landlord to provide these conditions.
St Martins estate was transferred by Lambeth to the three Registered Providers (RPs Metropolitan Housing Association, Notting Hill Genesis, and Optivo) many years ago following
a stock transfer request by residents. However, it became apparent over time that the original
arrangement whereby Metropolitan Thames Valley managed the whole of the estate on behalf
of the other two RP's did not work, and the Council supported each RP taking direct control of
the management of their stock in 2017
Despite this, it is clear that issues have persisted, and residents have raised repeated issues
with mould, damp and other maintenance issues. Following these concerns, I called in senior
representatives from the three RPs to discuss these matters with councillors. There was an
acknowledgement from each side that more needed to be done, and as result each produced
an action plan within a week of the meeting which has now been sent to the Tenants &
Residents Association (TRA) on the estate for discussion.
I will be visiting the estate again to get residents’ reflections on the proposed courses of action,
which includes remedial works to stop the damp, better forms of communication and
engagement with people living on the estate and other substantive works. I have been very
clear with the RPs that what residents want is action, not warm words, and that we do expect
progress to be made on the estate rapidly. I feel the RPs have taken this on board.
In terms of enforcement, damp and mould is one of the HHSRS hazards assessment which
can be carried for any property which is experiencing damp and or mould if the tenant feels
that the RP has/is not dealing with the matter. If we are not satisfied that progress is being
made on the issues raised by residents, enforcement action is a course we will consider.
7. Councillor Tim Windle
To: Cabinet Member for Housing, Cllr Paul Gadsby
Fenwick Estate Maintenance
What work has been undertaken to ensure that residents on the Fenwick Estate have their
homes maintained until the redevelopment work is completed?

Page 13

Party: Labour
Answer:
The council is absolutely committed to maintaining all estates throughout the regeneration
programme which will deliver better homes for existing residents and new homes at council
level rent for hundreds of people on Lambeth’s housing waiting list.
In terms of recent works on the Fenwick estate, in this current year from January 2019 to date,
the council has carried out 750 responsive repairs at a cost of £421,860 and has 386 planned
works for the future at a cost of £36,736. This includes work on the guttering system following
issues raised by Cllr Windle, his colleagues and the residents association – and I would like
to thank them all for their help in making sure we were aware of the remedial programme that
was needed with that system. This clearly shows our commitment to maintaining Fenwick
Estate so our residents have habitable homes whilst the brand-new warmer, drier and safer
homes are built on the estates for our residents to move into on completion. I was very glad
to be at the recent opening of the new Fenwick community hall with the three ward councillors
last month which was a great example of the investment that will continue to go into the area
during the regeneration period and despite the ongoing cuts to the council’s budget from
central government.

8. Councillor Phillip Normal
To: Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Councillor Sonia Winifred
Pride Month
How did the council celebrate Pride month?
Party: Labour
Answer:
This year marks 50 years since the Stonewall riots, a turning point in the global struggle for
LGBT+ rights, and so it was more important than ever that we as a borough were celebrating
Pride month. In addition to flying the pride flag from the Town Hall throughout June, and giving
out more than 2000 rainbow lanyards to Lambeth staff and schools as a visual representation
of the councils support for pride month, the Leader of the Council filmed a message of support
for the LGBT+ community. Businesses across Lambeth also placed rainbow stickers in their
windows to show support for the LGBT+ community.
We held pride month events in Lambeth Libraries including ‘Prose, Poetry & Debate: Queer
Writing from Europe’, Drag Queen Storytimes for the under 5s, Rainbow craft sessions for
children and a return of the fantastic Drag King workshops for adults. These events were
regularly promoted on Love Lambeth, via our social media networks, and in the June edition
of the libraries e-newsletter. As well as advertising events on the Love Lambeth blog we

Page 14

promoted the work the council has done around LGBT+ health inequalities, HIV prevention,
and working with the community to protect the historically significant Royal Vauxhall Tavern.
We held a Q&A with an LGBT staff member to raise awareness through our internal
communications, we held a dress down Friday fundraiser on June 28th to raise money for the
charity Stonewall, and our Lambeth LGBTQ+ staff forum attended a pan-London LGBT staff
forums conference.

9. Councillor Jonathan Bartley
To: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Andy Wilson
Bailiffs
In 2015 Lambeth Council agreed to end the use of bailiffs against those in receipt of Council
Tax Support (CTS) and between 2015 and 2017 no CTS cases were referred to the Council’s
Enforcement Agents. However, in 2017-18, 1,504 CTS cases were referred to Enforcement
Agents. Can the Cabinet Member explain why the Council have U-turned on their policy to not
use bailiffs against those in receipt of CTS and will the Cabinet Member follow the example of
other councils and commit to ending the use of bailiffs in all cases where residents fall into
council tax arrears?
Party: Green
Answer
As Cllr Bartley is well aware from numerous correspondence with officers and member’s
enquiries, Lambeth council does not use bailiffs against those in receipt of Council Tax
Support. It is deeply misleading for him to continue to claim otherwise.
Cllr Bartley correctly states that Lambeth Labour ended the use of bailiffs against residents
in receipt of Council Tax Support in 2015 in line with our financial resilience strategy and our
desire to support vulnerable people.
In 2017, we had concerns regarding the level of debt that some residents in receipt of CTS
were building up as a result of failing to pay. As a result, since then we have worked with an
external agency as part of our efforts to contact people who are in receipt of council tax
support but are not paying the portion of council tax that they owe (and are not responding to
the council in any way regarding their debt). This obviously does not include those in
protected groups (pensioners, disabled people, war widows, carers and those subject to the
benefit cap) who receive full CTS.
That agency contacts residents after the council has been unable to get in touch with them
for a period of time. This involves a letter, or a phone call to discuss payment. They also
offer debt advice, signposting to appropriate support including the council’s discretionary
payment for council tax support, and support to write off historic debt where appropriate.
This provides an additional route to help people who haven't paid and who may have fallen
into debt.

Page 15

No resident in these circumstances receives a knock on the door from enforcement agents
and they do not take possession of goods. The contact is to try an alternative approach to
the council contacting them as they are not engaging with us directly.
Experience has shown that many households who have otherwise not engaged with the
Council directly have begun to engage as a result of the contact. Importantly, this approach
also highlights cases to the Council who could benefit from help from our CTS discretionary
scheme and provides an opportunity for us to proactively help eligible residents.
As a result we have helped hard pressed CTS recipients avoid more than £3m in
enforcement agent charges which has ensured additional debt has not been added to the
burden of households who may already find themselves in hardship. This in turn leaves the
Council Tax team free to pursue those who can pay but won’t, as well as reduce the need to
write off debt that could be collected.
In addition more than 600 referrals to the Council Tax team have been received from
Advising Communities and both payment arrangements to clear arrears as well as
attachment of benefits have increased significantly. To date we have received payments
exceeding £600k from customers who used independent debt advice provided by Advising
Communities. We have also written off uncollectable debt of more than £100k.
I hope Cllr Bartley will welcome an approach which has provided those in need with
appropriate advice, reduced the debt of vulnerable residents and ensured they have proper
access to debt advice, support and benefits they are entitled to.

10. Councillor Maria Kay
To: Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Cllr Sonia Winifred
Windrush Compensation Scheme
What is the council's position on the recently announced Windrush compensation scheme?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Whilst we welcome the move by the government to make amends to the victims of the
Windrush scandal, in part through a compensation scheme, we feel that there are serious
issues with the scheme which need to be addressed. In April we wrote a letter jointly with
Helen Hayes MP to the Home Office about the announced compensation scheme for victims
of the Windrush scandal, advising on how to improve it, and offering help to ensure that
people affected apply. We made clear to the government that without accessible legal
advice, people affected by the Windrush scandal may be unable to claim or will fall victim to
high legal costs – which only adds to the unacceptable burden they have already
experienced at the government’s hands. We further urged the government to extend advice
training to councils.
22 June marked the 71st anniversary since the arrival of the Empire Windrush. Lambeth has
a long and proud history with many from the Windrush generation settling here when they

Page 16

came to the UK. We have continued to fight the corner of the Windrush generation and will
pressure government to improve the scheme.
We will also continue to celebrate the contribution of the Windrush generation, as we did in
June with events leading up to the first official Windrush day that took place on Saturday 22
June. We hosted Corpus Christi Primary School for a morning of celebrating Windrush
through music, poetry and storytelling; we held a Windrush Day event in Windrush Square;
and we hosted two exhibitions celebrating Lambeth’s black history in the Town Hall: Before
and After Windrush celebrating 350 years of Black people in Lambeth and Afro Supa Hero
by Jon Daniel, of the Windrush generation, both of which launched in June and will close at
the end of August.
11. Councillor Pete Elliott
To: Deputy Leader (Environment and Clean Air), Claire Holland
Air Quality monitors
On 10 October 2018 at Full Council we were informed by Cllr Holland that a trial was to start
with two smaller air quality monitoring devices that cost £5,000 each and that monitored
PM2.5. Can you publish the results of the trial and all data relating to PM2.5 pollution across
the borough? If the trial was a success, can you let us know when and where additional
monitoring will be carried out?
Party: Green
Answer:
We are currently piloting two lightweight air quality monitoring devices which have been
installed in the borough: one at a primary school and another at Lambeth Town Hall.
The monitor at the primary school has been running for a number of months and raw data is
being reviewed by officers. We are in touch with King’s College London (KCL) for them to peer
review the data to assess the accuracy of the machine and the data it records. The installation
at the Town Hall was delayed slightly to ensure there was a power supply, but when both of
the trials are finished, a report will be produced and published accordingly.
If we are confident that these monitors are accurate, then we intend to purchase more
machines to collect air quality data in other areas in the borough.
All of the air quality monitoring data held for the borough from 2018 is released in the Annual
Status Report which is due to be submitted to the Department for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs and published soon.

12. Councillor Pauline George
To: Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, Cllr Ed Davie

Page 17

Living wage and NHS Trusts
So far very few NHS trusts are living wage accredited -what is Lambeth doing to change this?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Lambeth Council is proud to have been one of the first London Living Wage (LLW)
accredited local authorities from 2012 and now more than 99% of our contractors pay LLW.
Earlier this year we became the first borough to host a LLW building, International House,
and we are working hard to ensure that many more local organisations and businesses pay
the LLW and get accredited. As part of that work I have met with the chairs of all the major
local NHS Trusts and secured their agreement to seek LLW accreditation. To that end I
arranged a workshop at the Town Hall last month with representatives from King’s College
Hospital, St George’s, South London and the Maudsley, and Guy’s and St Thomas’s NHS
Trusts, the Living Wage Foundation and Lambeth Council officers who support our LLW
compliance work. They are all now working towards accreditation which would mean
hundreds, perhaps thousands, of Lambeth residents who work for the Trusts in cleaning,
catering and other roles being lifted out of poverty wages improving their health and other
outcomes. About 20% of Lambeth residents in work are paid below LLW and we are
determined to use all our powers and influence to end the scandal of in-work poverty.

13. Councillor Joseph Corry-Roake
To: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Cllr Andy Wilson
Homes for Lambeth Business Plan
Earlier this year, the 19-20 Homes for Lambeth business plan was published. It outlined total
loan facilities by March 2020 of 29.1 million pounds. I welcome the efforts to tackle the
housing crisis in Lambeth.
What are the risks to Lambeth Council of these loans to Homes for Lambeth? How have
they been mitigated? And how are ongoing risks being mitigated?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Loans to Homes for Lambeth will take two forms. A working capital loan for £5m has already
been agreed to pay for Homes for Lambeth running costs and the terms of the loan restrict
what these monies can be spent on, to date £800,000 of this loan has been drawn down.
The main loans will be development loans, none of which have been finalised at the time of
writing. Development loans will be for the development of housing at agreed locations and
will be backed by a lease agreement that determines what can be built at each site in line with

Page 18

the Planning permission granted. Before entering to a Development loan the Council with
external support where necessary will review the financial model, project plan and risk register
for each site. The Council will also receive sensitivity analysis produced by Homes for Lambeth
showing the impact of changes of key variables such as construction costs and house prices
on the viability of the project. At the commencement of each scheme, Homes for Lambeth
are expecting to make a 10% surplus and this provides additional protection to the Council,
as this surplus could reduce and the loans could still be repaid in full. As the Council is 100%
owner of Homes for Lambeth and is fully represented on the Board, it has access to all financial
information to monitor the progress of schemes.
14. Councillor Scott Ainslie
To: Deputy Leader (Environment and Clean Air), Claire Holland
Road Closure Signs
In 2017, residents who chose to use the Council’s contractors to close their road on Car Free
Day were charged £150 for road closure signs. This year, will the Council remove all charges
for road closure signs, removing a barrier to participation, and provide residents with all of the
resources that they need to participate in Car Free Day for free?
Party: Green
Answer:
There are no fees for residents to participate in Car Free Day 2019.
Here in Lambeth we have been at the forefront of enabling play streets in general, and on Car
Free day in particular, for a decade already without payment to the council and without
burdening the taxpayer. In fact, the efficiency of our way of working triggered the Minister of
State for Transport to write to all highway authorities last month encouraging all councils to
adopt them.
Earlier this year I joined London’s Walking and Cycling Commissioner, Will Norman, and
Deputy Mayor for Transport, Heidi Alexander at City Hall and signed the Play Street Pledge
enshrining our commitment to play streets not only on Car Free Day, but across the year.

15. Councillor Irfan Mohammed
To: Cabinet Member for Housing, Cllr Paul Gadsby
Martha jones House

Page 19

Could you give us an update about the work of Lambeth's new homeless shelter, Martha
Jones House, 6 months on after it opened?
Party: Labour
Answer:
There is little doubt that we need places of care and support like Martha Jones House given
the homelessness crisis facing the country and which is particularly acute in London. Despite
the government’s indifference to this crisis we are doing all we can to ensure we help those
who find themselves in this awful situation in our borough.
In terms of Martha Jones House in Oval which I opened in December, it replaces Graham
House hostel, formerly Thames Reach’s largest hostel. The Oval councillors deserve a lot of
credit for ensuring actively that this vital facility is now open. The new hostel offers a mix of
larger bed spaces and self-contained flats for up to 50 homeless people in Lambeth and is
complete with kitchen space and washroom facilities ensuring that it can cater for a much
wider range of needs and abilities. The hostel accepts pets and allows people with complex
needs, including drug and alcohol problems, poor mental health, and challenging behaviour,
to stay for up to nine months. Staff at the hostel support residents to engage with services
both in-house and externally so that they can progress to moving away from supported
accommodation to become more self-reliant and independent.
I have been hugely impressed on my visits to the hostel and having spoken to residents there,
I can testify what an important place it is to many people. Most importantly Martha Jones
House is not just a place to stay, but a facility that seeks to help people improve their lives.
Martha Jones House is one of the main hostels within the Vulnerable Adults’ Pathway and
accommodates residents with high needs in relation to alcohol and drug use, mental health
(not severe and enduring) and offending.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank Thames Reach, its staff at Martha Jones House
and Lambeth’s housing team for their ongoing work to help some of the most vulnerable
residents in our community

16. Councillor Nicole Griffiths
To: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Andy Wilson
Energy Procurement
Will the Cabinet member commit to procuring the council’s energy from a greener provider?
Party: Green
Answer:

Page 20

Lambeth’s commitment to sourcing greener energy alternatives dates back over 9 years.
Lambeth has been active participant in the London Energy Project (LEP), the London public
sector centre of expertise for innovative energy procurement strategy and effective energy
and carbon management since 2010.
Energy and the procurement of our own clean energy supplies is a key part of our response
to tackling the climate crisis. Decarbonising our energy supply is vital to reducing our reliance
on fossil fuels but I am sure you will agree that we also need significant government
intervention to ramp up the decarbonisation of the grid.
Our recently published Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan already outlines how the council will
move to procuring clean energy, and in particular how we will move to a clean electricity
supplier when our current arrangements come to an end in 2020. Our plan also outlines how
the council plans to reduce its overall energy consumption, as well as procure its full energy
supply from clean suppliers by 2030 at the very latest.

17. Councillor Nanda Manley Browne
To: Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Cllr Sonia Winifred
Refugee Week
What did the council do to mark refugee week?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Lambeth has been at the forefront in supporting refugees who have had to flee their
countries due to conflict and disaster. Lambeth has resettled 27 refugee families from Syria,
since we began supporting the Vulnerable Persons Resettlement Scheme in 2016 – more
than any other London Borough.
During Refugee Week, I attended and spoke at the #OurTurn rally outside of Parliament with
Lord Dubs, calling on the government to resettle 10,000 unaccompanied children over the
next ten years. We have confirmed that we will welcome more refugee children who arrive in
Britain unaccompanied, having fled war-torn regions of the world. Working with other
councils in London, we are lobbying the government regarding the inadequate funding that
councils receive to help people who are fleeing conflict and who need a great deal of
support.
We hosted the Immigration Minister for a visit in Tulse Hill during Refugee Week, which was
a part of the Home Office’s announcement that the UK plans to resettle around 5000 of the
world’s most vulnerable refugees. We have made clear that this one year extension is not
the end of the government’s commitment, and that we will continue to make the case on
behalf of vulnerable people across the world.

Page 21

18. Councillor Scarlett O’Hara
To: Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment & New Homes, Cllr Matthew Bennett
Brixton Arches
Can the cabinet member provide an update on the Brixton Arches: when will the Network Rail
handover occur and, when will returning and new tenants be able to take up occupancy?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Throughout Network Rail’s programme of refurbishment to the Brixton Arches, we made clear
to Network Rail the refurbishment should maintain the individual and unique character of the
Arches and Brixton as a whole. Local councillors spent a lot of time talking to traders and
working hard to get Network Rail to address their concerns.
We successfully pressed Network Rail to introduced stepped rents, so existing traders could
afford to return. In years 1-3 traders will pay 50% of market rent and full market rent will not
be charged for 8 years.
Network Rail are now no longer responsible for the Brixton arches, they are now in the
ownership of ‘The Arch Company’. The council does not have access to the company’s
information, but when asked to provide a response to this question, they commented’;
‘Some tenants, such as Cafe Max and Beautiful Books have already returned. Others such as
Cafe Rio, are completing their fit out, and will return in the near future. The Arch Company,
which has taken over Network Rails commercial Estate, is currently marketing the vacant
arches to independent businesses, who will complement the offers of the returning arches
traders’.
While we are waiting on further information from The Arch Company, we are aware of at least
nine returning tenants.

19. Councillor Iain Simpson
To: Deputy Leader of the Council (Environment and Clean Air), Cllr Claire Holland
Controlled Parking Zone
In December 2018 and January 2019 residents in the east of Streatham Hill were consulted
over whether they wished to have a Controlled Parking Zone introduced. What did this
consultation show, what decision has been made, and what are the next steps?

Page 22

Party: Labour
Answer:
The Delegated Decision Report detailing this information will be published imminently and a
copy will be available on the council’s website. Broadly speaking, one in five residents
responded to the consultation and of those, the majority now favour introducing controlled
parking in the roads that lay both west of Hillside Road and south of Palace Road. In addition,
the majority of residents in Probyn Road now support controlled parking. The documentation
that is required to support the statutory consultation on introducing controlled parking in these
roads, and in Roupell Road where there was no majority for-or-against, is almost ready.
However, we plan to delay launching the consultation until August when we know the outcome
of a stage 1 public consultation for including in that CPZ a triangle of roads bounded by
Hailsham Avenue, Lydhurst Avenue and Mont Nod Road

20. Councillor Joanna Reynolds
To: Deputy Leader of the Council (Environment and Clean Air), Cllr Claire Holland
Climate Emergency
Following the announcement of the climate emergency, what steps is the council taking to
combat climate change in our borough?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Responding to the climate crisis requires an urgent response from all levels of government,
business and from the wider general public as if it is left unchecked, the impacts on the poorest
and most vulnerable in our society will be disastrous.
We know that the council’s operations only account for around 1% of the borough’s total
carbon footprint, so the response requires two things.
Firstly, the council has lead by example on declaring a climate emergency and bringing
forward our target to become carbon neutral. We know that the government’s 2050 target is
wholly inadequate and the effects of such a slow response will have disastrous effects on the
most vulnerable people here in Lambeth and elsewhere. Therefore we brought forward our
target of becoming carbon neutral by 20 years to 2030. To achieve this, we recently published
our first Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan. This is a live and dynamic plan, which includes
some, but not all, of the necessary actions to make the council’s operations carbon neutral by
2030. It will be constantly added to and the plan and its impact against the 2030 target will be
assessed each year and reported to cabinet so that any necessary adjustments to the targets
and actions can be made.

Page 23

Secondly, while the council can provide leadership by reducing its own carbon emissions, and
use the planning and regulatory powers local government has to provide some influence, the
council does not have the power or the solutions to significantly reduce carbon emissions
across the borough as a whole alone. We know that many people, organisations and
businesses in Lambeth are already exploring smarter, greener ways of working and living, so
it’s vital that we open out the conversation more widely. Therefore alongside conversations
with our key partners, businesses and stakeholders to see how we can make greater strides
on reducing our emissions, the council has announced that it will be holding an independently
organised and run Lambeth Citizens’ Assembly which will be fully representative of our
wonderful borough, and it will consider the borough’s response to the climate crisis.
The recommendations from the citizens’ assembly, along with the aforementioned
engagement and the council’s Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan, will form part of a boroughwide carbon reduction strategy that will be published next year.
I’d like to put on record my thanks to Cllr Reynolds and my other colleagues who have fed into
the work that we have done so far.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 25

Agenda Item 8.a

Corporate Committee 21 March 2019
Report title: Corporate Committee Report 2018/19
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance Councillor Andrew Wilson
Report Authorised by: Christina Thompson: Acting Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Christine Webster, Interim Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud, Finance
& Investment, 07763 575612, cwebster1@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This is the 13th Annual Report of the Corporate Committee which is to be submitted to the Council
Meeting on 24 April 2019. It provides a summary of the Corporate Committee’s activities during the
year to fulfil its responsibilities as set out in its terms of reference.

Finance summary
This report summarises the Committee’s oversight of the Council’s financial administration for the year
2018/19. The report does not give rise to any additional capital or revenue financial implications. Actions
to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and Council policies will be undertaken within the existing
budgets.

Recommendations
1.

To consider, amend and agree the Corporate Committee’s Annual Report for 2018/19 as set out
in Appendix 1 and to recommend it to Full Council for approval.

1

Page 26
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Corporate Committee’s Terms of Reference state that the Corporate Committee is required
to: “approve, for submission to Council, an annual report of the activities of the Committee in
discharging its various audit functions”.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The draft Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2018/19 is included at Appendix 1 for
consideration and approval by Corporate Committee.

2.1

The Corporate Committee’s Terms of Reference, were last reviewed and updated as part of the
annual review of the Council’s Constitution 2018/19 which was approved by Council on 19 April
2017, 18 October 2017 and 23 January 2019. The Terms of Reference set out the Corporate
Committee’s remit as the Council’s Audit Committee, which includes oversight of the following for
areas:











2.2

The Corporate Committee’s Terms of Reference also include a number of non-audit
responsibilities including the following where periodic reports are received and considered by the
Committee:













2.3

Internal Audit and Investigation functions, including the consideration of strategies and
policies, the annual assurance report and regular reports on completed work and the
performance of the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Service;
Annual statement of accounts and accounting policies;
Annual Governance Statement;
External Audit annual letter and related reports;
Risk management arrangements;
Corporate governance arrangements;
Whistle blowing arrangements;
Bribery Act arrangements;
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000; and,
Referrals from other Committees.

Approve the Council's Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement;
Approve the Council Tax base and the National Non-Domestic Rate base;
Reports produced by the Chief Finance Officer;
Reports on personnel-related issues and health and safety at work;
Adverse Local Government Ombudsman reports;
Adverse Housing Ombudsman reports;
Trustee of Trusts;
Elections;
Nominations for Freedom of the Borough;
Orders for designated public places;
Rush Common Act 1806; and,
Naming of local streets and buildings.

During the municipal year 2018/19, the Corporate Committee met on five occasions:



26 July 2018;
27 September 2018;
2

Page 27




06 December 2018;
24 January 2019; and,
21 March 2019.

2.4

The draft Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2018/19 at Appendix 1 incorporates matters
which are covered elsewhere on the same agenda for the meeting on 21 March 2019 to ensure
that the report which is then presented to Council represents the Corporate Committee’s work for
the whole municipal year.

3.
3.1

FINANCE

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

Regulation 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 sets out the Council’s responsibility for
ensuring that it has a sound system of internal control which:

This report summarises the Committee’s oversight of the Council’s financial administration for the
year 2018/19. The report does not give rise to any additional capital or revenue financial
implications. Actions to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and Council policies will be
undertaken within the existing budgets.

(a)
(b)
(c)

facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and
objectives;
ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; and,
includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

4.2

Regulation 5 requires the Council to ensure that it undertakes an effective internal audit to
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, and taking
into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

4.3

There were no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

All members of the Corporate Committee were consulted on this report and their comments have
been incorporated into the report.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

An ineffective audit committee could result in governance, risk and control arrangements
remaining unchallenged, resulting in failure to meet the Council’s objectives, increased risks of
fraud, waste or error and the potential for adverse criticism from the external auditor or other
agencies.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

Not applicable.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Not applicable.
3

Page 28
9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Not applicable.

4

Page 29
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Adrian Garden
Councillor Scott Ainslie
Councillor Anna Birley
Councillor Peter Ely
Councillor Jackie Meldrum
Councillor Andrew Wilson
Christina Thompson,
Strategic Director
Alison McKane, Director
David Rose, Democratic
Services

Lambeth directorate/
division or partner
Chair, Corporate Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Cabinet Member for Finance

Date
Received
12.03.19

Comments
in para:
10, 15

11.03.19
11.03.19
11.03.19
11.03.19
11.03.19
11.03.19

12.03.19

N/A

Finance and Investment

11.03.19

12.03.19

16

Legal and Governance

11.03.19

12.03.19

N/A

Legal and Governance

11.03.19

12.03.19

Date Sent

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
08.03.19
13.03.19
No
No
N/A
N/A
Agendas and Minutes of the meetings of Corporate
Committee in 2018/19
1. Draft Corporate Committee Annual Report 2018/19

5

Page 30
Appendix 1

London Borough of Lambeth
Corporate Committee Annual Report 2018/19

Chair’s introduction
I am very pleased to present this Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2018/19 to both the Corporate
Committee and to Full Council.
The report shows that the Corporate Committee has undertaken its role effectively; covering a wide
range of topics and ensuring that appropriate governance and control arrangements are in place to
protect the interests of the Council and the community generally. We also considered reviews which
assessed the effectiveness of the Corporate Committee, in its audit committee role, against published
best practice along with that of the Council’s Internal Audit functions.
The Corporate Committee, in its role as the Council’s audit committee, has received regular reports
from officers on a wide range of governance, risk and control matters and has provided effective
challenge where improvements in those arrangements have been required. We have considered and
agreed the internal audit and counter fraud policies, strategies and work plans and received regular
reports from the Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud on completed audits, advisory reviews and
investigations which have enabled us to challenge officers where improvements are required.
We have also received and considered reports from the Council’s external auditor (KPMG) on the
2017/18 financial statements for the Council and Pension Fund.
I would like to thank all the Members who served on the Corporate Committee during 2018/19. My
thanks also go to the Council’s officers, who have reported to and supported the work of the Corporate
Committee over the past 12 months, and our external auditors who have supported the work of the
Corporate Committee over the past year.

Councillor Adrian Garden
Chair of the Corporate Committee

6

Page 31
1. Terms of Reference and membership
The Terms of Reference of the Corporate (Audit) Committee are set out in the Council’s Constitution
(see Part 2, section 1C).
The main purpose of the Corporate Committee is to provide effective oversight for the Council’s
governance, risk and control arrangements, including adherence to the requirements of the updated
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to prevent,
detect and take action on fraud and corruption and the proper stewardship of public funds.
The Corporate Committee’s terms of reference were last reviewed and updated as part of the annual
review of the Council’s Constitution 2018/19, which was approved by Council on 19 April 2017, 18
October 2017 and 23 January 2019.
The Corporate Committee met formally five times during 2018/19.
During 2018/19 our Committee’s membership was as follows:
 Councillor Adrian Garden (Chair)
 Councillors Scott Ainslie, Anna Birley, Peter Ely and Jackie Meldrum.
Councillors Mary Atkins, Ben Kind and Ian Simpson were designated as the Committee’s substitute
members during 2018/19.

2. The Corporate Committee’s work programme
We agree a comprehensive work programme each year covering all aspects of our Terms of Reference
and review this at each meeting. Items can be added if the Corporate Committee feels it appropriate.
Having received reports, the Corporate Committee also asks officers to provide further reports on action
taken to implement improvements recommended by the Corporate Committee.
The work undertaken by the Corporate Committee during 2018/19 fell into the following key areas:
 Receiving regular updates on completed audits and investigations;
 Receiving the Annual Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Report which summarised the adequacy
of the Council’s control environment for 2017/18;
 Reviewing the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund along with the
Annual Governance Statement which assessed the Council’s overall governance arrangements;
 Receiving the work plan and reports of the Council’s external auditors;
 Reviewing and approving the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy, Charter and Work Plans
for 2019/20;
 Reviewing the Corporate Risk Registers and the Risk Management Strategy and Policy;
 Receiving reports on the management of risks in Adults and Children’s Services;
 Reviewing and approving the Council’s policies for counter fraud, bribery, whistle blowing and
money laundering;
 Receiving reports on performance in respect of complaints, Members enquiries and information
requests (under the Freedom of Information Act and Data Protection Act);
 Reviewing treasury management performance reports;
 Reviewing and approving Rush Common consent applications; and
Annex A sets out all of the reports which the Corporate Committee received and considered during
2018/19.
7

Page 32

3. Actions requested
The Corporate Committee made a number of special interventions when considering the agenda items
and maintained an Action Log which was reviewed at each meeting to ensure that matters raised were
addressed. We have included the most recent copy at Annex B.

4. The Annual Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Report for 2017/18
On 26 July 2018, the Corporate Committee considered the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Internal
Audit and Counter Fraud Report for 2017/18. This was prepared and presented by the Interim Head of
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud.
The Annual Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Report summarised the work that the Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud service had undertaken during the year and the key themes that they identified across
the Council. The Report contained an overall assessment of the Council’s control environment in the
form of the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Opinion. The Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud’s
opinion was:
Generally satisfactory with some improvements required
Governance, risk management and control in relation to business critical areas is generally
satisfactory. However, there are some areas of weakness and non-compliance in the framework of
governance, risk management and control which potentially put the achievement of objectives at risk.
Improvements are required in those areas to enhance the adequacy and effectiveness of the
framework of governance, risk management and control.
The Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud stated that this conclusion was reached because:




Medium risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are not significant in
aggregate to the system of internal control;
High risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are isolated to specific
systems or processes;
Only one individual assignment report has an overall classification of no assurance (ICT Back
Ups). This audit was requested by management as it was a known area of concern and selected
to help them prioritise next steps and determine their response.

The Corporate Committee agreed with the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion for 2017/18.

5. Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategic Approach and Charter - 2019/20
Internal Audit
The Corporate Committee considered the Internal Audit Strategy and Charter for 2019/20 at its meeting
on 24 January 2019. The Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service is delivered and developed,
including how its resources for the services, comprising an in-house team and an external provider
(PwC), are applied to deliver the Work Plans and address the risks that the Council faces. It is
underpinned by the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter which describes the purpose, authority,
responsibility and position of the service.
8

Page 33
Counter Fraud
The Council’s strategic approach to countering fraud has four key attributes:
 promoting a counter-fraud fraud culture and engaging employees, members and contractors
in combating fraud and error;
 investigating and reporting on identified fraud, error and debt, seeking appropriate sanctions
and redress where fraud is proven;
 assessing fraud risk, identifying the areas most vulnerable to fraud and assisting management
to develop effective counter fraud controls; and,
 sharing good practice and developing effective internal and external relationships to combat
fraud.
This is set out in the Counter Fraud Policy, which was approved by the Corporate Committee on 24
January 2019. This is also underpinned by the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter that was
approved on the same date.

6. Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans
The Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud provided progress reports to every Corporate Committee
on progress against the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans for 2018/19. The Corporate
Committee assessed progress and considered amendments made to the Work Plans that were required
due to emerging risks and changing requirements.
The progress reports also included the outcome of planned and reactive audit work undertaken on
specific aspects of activity around the Council’s governance, risk management and control environment
and the outcome of completed fraud investigations. Where Internal Audit identified systems, services
or areas as demonstrating ‘No’ or ‘Limited’ assurance, the Corporate Committee challenged the
reasons for this and sought assurances that appropriate actions were being put in place to manage
these risks and that management could verify the actions taken with appropriate evidence.
The Corporate Committee considered the Proposed Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans for
2019/20 on 21 March 2019. The Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans represent key areas of
interest for the Corporate Committee and cover activities around governance, risk management,
internal controls and assurance arrangements across the Council.

7. Counter Fraud activity
The Corporate Committee recognised the good work being done in respect of tenancy investigations,
identifying Council housing properties and those managed locally by housing associations for recovery
which had been subject to unlawful subletting.
The Committee also welcomed the work being done to investigate internal fraud and to recover money
and assets obtained through fraud against the Council through various means, including the Proceeds
of Crime Act, where a number of notable successes had been reported to the Committee. The
Committee was keen to ensure that where such recoveries are achieved, the ring-fenced funds be
reinvested into further investigative and recovery action and was supportive of the introduction of a fulltime Accredited Financial Investigator into the Counter Fraud Service.

9

Page 34
The Corporate Committee was pleased to see more information provided in respect of internal fraud
investigations. Data is now provided detailing outcomes of internal fraud investigations by department,
demonstrating where issues are identified and what outcomes are achieved. The Committee agreed
that a new formula for calculating the value of the recovery of tenanted properties that had been subject
to fraud was required.
The Corporate Committee considered the Council’s arrangements for meeting the Data Transparency
Code 2015 which requires local authorities to publish a wide range of data including that relating to
counter fraud costs and activity and how favourably this compares with the value of fraud identified,
prosecuted and recovered by the Council’s investigation functions.
In addition, the Corporate Committee has reviewed and approved a number of the Council’s counter
fraud policies and procedures, including those covering fraud, bribery, money laundering and whistle
blowing.

8. Relationship with the external auditors
Representatives from our external auditors (KPMG for 2017/18 accounts and Mazars for 2018/19
accounts) have been regular attendees at our meetings during 2018/19. This includes presenting their
plans for the audit of the Council’s Statement of Accounts and Pension Fund accounts and reporting
the outcome of their work for that year’s accounts.

9. The Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement
The Corporate Committee considered the Statement of Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund
and the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18 at its meeting on 26 July 2018. KPMG
reported at the Corporate Committee on 26 July 2018 that KPMG had reviewed the Redress Scheme
and concluded in 2017 that it met legal powers and value for money, but the actuary needed to seek
independent peer review of the financial model for estimating future costs of the Scheme. The actuary
had sought independent review and the auditing of the Redress Scheme started in autumn 2017, but
the Council only received advice from the auditors of the need for a second actuarial opinion three
weeks prior to Corporate Committee, although no changes were expected as a result of this review.
The requirement for an actuarial peer review for the estimated future costs of the Redress Scheme and
the time this would take, had meant that the Audit could not be signed-off. The External Audit ran
throughout July and August, and the Accounts would be signed-off pending the outcome of the Redress
Scheme review. There were no other issues preventing sign-off of the account.
The 2017/18 external audit report and the Pension Fund account were given clean opinions, whilst the
opinion on value for money mirrored that of previous years: qualification on conclusion. Children’s
Services was still not of satisfactory delivery, but the latest Ofsted conclusions and improvements in
financial controls were positive developments.
There also remained some outstanding local elector correspondence holding up the Audit’s certification.
10. Risk Management
On 27 September 2018, the Corporate Committee reviewed and approved the Council’s Risk
Management Strategy and Policy 2017- 2020. The Corporate and Strategic Risk report was also
considered on 27 September 2018 and 21 March 2019.
10

Page 35
The Corporate Committee noted that the Strategy appeared to be working as high rated risks were not
materialising, although movement was expected. Risks arising from Brexit would be included in future
reports and added to the risk register. It was noted that the risk around the Youth Offending Service
was ongoing.
The Committee welcomed the effective application of risk appetite, but continues to be concerned that
risk levels are higher than appetite and levels tend to plateau rather than decline.

11. Treasury Management
Following the establishment of the Pension Board and Pension Committee on 1 April 2015 the
Committee retained oversight for treasury management activity in respect of the Council’s investments
and borrowing. On 27 September 2018, the Corporate Committee received a report on Treasury
Management performance.

12. Governance requirements
CIPFA published a statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government in
December 2010 which contained a set of governance requirements. They recommend that each
authority should assess itself against standards to satisfy itself that it has effective governance
arrangements in place. Authorities are encouraged to see the Statement as representing best practice
and use it to assess their arrangements to drive up audit quality and governance arrangements.
The Corporate Committee was pleased to note that the Internal Audit Service continued to be
conforming in all areas with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) having previously made
some minor improvements to arrangements which were recommended as a result of and external peer
review undertaken in 2015.
The Corporate Committee approved the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter in January 2019 to
ensure that it continues to fully comply with the PSIAS requirements.
The Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18 was audited by the external auditors and the Statement
of Accounts (which includes the Annual Governance Statement) was approved on 26 July 2018.

13. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)
RIPA aims to ensure that public bodies respect the privacy of members of the public when carrying out
their investigations and that there is an interference with privacy only where the law permits it and there
is a clear public interest justification. The Council’s use of its powers under RIPA and the
Communications Order are subject to external scrutiny in the form of annual inspections by the Office
of Surveillance Commissioner’s Office (OSC) and the Interception of Communications Commissioner’s
Office (IOCCO) respectively. All applications for covert surveillance are subject to judicial approval, in
a magistrate’s court, to ensure the use of this technique is limited to only the most serious criminal
investigations which would result in a custodial sentence of at least six months.

14. Public Engagement

11

Page 36
The Corporate Committee has considered issues over the last year that have generated a lot of public
interest. Members are always keen to hear views of the public and that has increased public
participation at meetings. Members of the public have contributed to discussions around special audits
and investigations, and the Council’s transparency data.

15. Complaints, Members Enquiries and Information Governance
The Corporate Committee received reports on complaints, members’ enquiries and Freedom of
Information Request at the meetings on 27 September 2018 and 21 March 2019. These focussed on
the arrangements for, and performance of, handling of complaints, information requests and Members’
Enquiries. The Corporate Committee also considered reports on the handling of statutory complaints
in Children’s Services and of Members’ enquiries relating to Adult Social Care on 6 December 2018.
The Committee expressed concern that performance does not match plans, KPIs or objectives and that
this appears to reflect a lack of effective performance appraisal and management.
16. Lambeth’s Workforce
The Corporate Committee received reports on workforce strategy at its meetings on 26 July 2018 and
24 January 2019. A workforce management review was also presented in January 2019 and annual
human resource and organisational development metrics were presented for the workforce in
September.
To provide assurances over the Council’s considerations for organisational changes, the Corporate
Committee received reports on Future Lambeth at meetings on 26 July 2018 and 21 March 2019, for
which members of the press and public were excluded.

17. Conclusion
The Corporate Committee believes that it has successfully fulfilled its role and responsibilities, as set
out in the Corporate Committee’s terms of reference, during 2018/19. Members demonstrated real
commitment, engagement and robust challenge in the issues before them. The Corporate Committee
would like to express its appreciation to the Council staff, external stakeholders and our external
auditors who have contributed to our work and supported us throughout the year.

12

Page 37
Annex A: Summary of reports considered by Corporate Committee during 2018/19
Date of Meeting

26/07/2018

Report Considered
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Annual Governance Statement
 Statement of Accounts 2017/18 and External Audit Report
 Public Inspection 2017/18
 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report
 Workforce Strategy
 Future Lambeth Organisational Change












Work Programme and Action Monitoring
Annual HR and OD Metrics Workforce Report
Six monthly Review of CSC Casework Audit of Complaints and Lessons
Learnt
Complaints, Member's Enquiries and Freedom of Information Act request
201718
Treasury Management Performance Report
Rush Common Annual Report
Risk Management Strategy and Policy 2017-20 - Annual Review
Corporate and Strategic Risk Report
Audit Committee Effectiveness
Audit and Investigations Update
Treasury Management Performance Report











Work Programme and Action Monitoring
Audit and Investigations Update
LGO report on enforcement and noise nuisance
Children’s Social Care – Annual Complaints
Children’s Social Care – Risk Management
Adults Social Care – Annual Complaints
Adults Social Care – Members’ Enquiries
Adults Social Care - Risk Management
Safeguarding Annual Report





Work Programme and Action Monitoring
External Audit Plan 2018/19




Procurement Update
Calculation of Council Tax Base and National Non-Domestic Rates Return
1 2018/19
Pay Policy Statement
Future Lambeth Workforce Strategy
Six Monthly Workforce Management Review
Audit and Investigations Update
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy and Charter for 2019/20 and
Annual Review of Counter Fraud Policies


27/09/2018

06/12/2018

24/01/19







Public Notice Question: Local Government Transparency Code
compliance

13

Page 38
Date of Meeting

21/03/19

Report Considered
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plans 2019/20
 Audit and Investigations Update
 Corporate Committee Annual Report
 Corporate Risk Register Q4 2018/19
 Corporate Complaints – six-monthly update
 Future Lambeth Organisational Change

14

Annex B – Corporate Committee Action Log - Corporate Committee Action Monitoring
Awaiting and Overdue
No.

Due
Date

Meeting
Date

Action

2

July
2019

26.07.18

6

3

06.12.18

27.09.18

12

4

Pending
above

27.09.18

12

5

21.03.19

24.01.19

5

PNQ

To inform the Committee and Mr Keane how they
could make the external audit process more effective.

6

21.03.19

24.01.19

6

Procurement
Update

To review what procurement data be published and
how this was accessed.

7

21.03.19

24.01.19

6

Procurement
Update

The Head of Procurement would discuss the points
raised by Councillor Briggs with him and send on to
Committee members.

10

Six
monthly
Details of directorates’ workforces on agency
Workforce
contracts and vacancies would be provided in future
Management
reports.
Review

24.01.19

15

Comments

Owner

To be reported
outside the
meeting

Director for
Housing

To be covered in
future report

Assistant Director
for Strategic
Finance

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Interim Head of
Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Interim Head of
Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud

To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting

Assistant Director
for Strategic
Finance

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Head of
Procurement
Head of
Procurement
Interim Director
for HR and OD

Page 39

To provide reports on fire safety and on the feasibility
Housing Fire Safety
of installing sprinklers pending Cabinet Member
Update
decision.
The Intelligence, Digital and Information Governance
Public
Inspection Management Sub-Group would consider responses
2017/18
to Public Inspection, benchmarking against other
local authorities and report back.
The
Committee
agreed
to
undertake
Audit
Committee
recommendation 3, skills analysis, to be completed
Effectiveness
prior to the December meeting.
The Committee would subsequently undertake 1 and
Audit
Committee 2 following on from the results of the self-assessment
Effectiveness
(training programme and/or extra independent
member).

Ongoing

Ongoing

4

Description

1

8

21.03.18

Agenda
Item

No.

Due
Date

9

Ongoing

10

June
2019

Meeting
Date
24.01.19

24.01.19

Agenda
Item

Description

Action

Comments

Owner

10

Six
monthly
Workforce
A separate briefing would be provided outside the
Management
Committee on agency workers and sickness rates.
Review

To be covered in
future report

Interim Director
for HR and
OD/Democratic
Services

12

IACF Strategy and To report on recent action taken in relation to benefit
Charter 2018/19
assessor fraud.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Counter Fraud
Manager

Page 40

16

Implemented/Finished
No.

1

2

4

5

27.09.18

July 2019

27.09.18

24.01.19

24.01.19

Meeting
Date

21.03.18

26.07.18

26.07.18

26.07.18

26.07.18

Agenda
Item

4

5

6

Description

Action

To provide proof of TRAs completing certain work.
Internal Audit has a dedicated housing H&S follow up
Housing Fire Safety
audit and the status of implementation of agreed
Update
actions from the 17-18 internal audit report will be
reported through this work.
Statement
of
Accounts 2017/18 The opportunity to review progress would be added
and External Audit to the work programme.
Report
Officers would go back to the Parks Service to provide
anonymised income totals for the answer to Elector
Public
Inspection
7’s query, but noted that a breakdown of this
2017/18
information would breach commercial sensitivity
(agenda pack second dispatch, page 11).

Comments

To be reported
outside the
meeting and
included in future
audit reports

To be included in
future reports

To be provided
outside the
meeting

7

Internal Audit and S20 had also been removed from the Continuous
Counter
Fraud Auditing programme in January 2018. A separate
Annual
Report audit would be performed in 2018/19 and be reported
2017/18
to the Corporate Committee.

To be included in
future reports

7

Internal Audit and The Continuous Auditing results, based on testing
Counter
Fraud specific controls, for the year showed that Housing
Annual
Report Repairs had moved from red to amber. Internal Audit
2017/18
has removed this area from Continuous Auditing for

To be included in
future reports

17

Owner
Assistant
Director for
Housing Capital
Programme /
Interim Head of
Internal Audit
and Counter
Fraud
Assistant
Director for
Strategic
Finance
Assistant
Director for
Strategic
Finance
Head of Internal
Audit and
Counter Fraud
/Risk Manager to
reflect updates in
relevant
corporate risks &
issues)
Interim Head of
Internal Audit
and Counter
Fraud

Page 41

3

Due Date

No.

6

7

9

10

11

27.09.18

24.01.19

24.01.19

24.01.19

21.03.19

21.03.19

Meeting
Date

26.07.18

27.09.18

Agenda
Item

8

4

24.01.19

27.09.18

Action

1819 to do a separate audit in 2018/19. The results
will be reported to Corporate Committee in line with
the usual reporting protocol.
The additional proposals would be brought back to
Future
Lambeth the Committee for further discussion, detailing
Workforce Strategy
engagement with unions and engagement with all
parties.

Annual HR and OD The Committee requested that it receive monitoring
Metrics Workforce of how agency work was split between directorates
Report
and on numbers of temporary staff thus employed.

Audit
Investigations
Update

and

Comments

Owner

To be included in
future reports

Interim HR
Director

To be included in
future reports

Head of
Performance &
Service
Improvement /
Head of HR and
Organisational
Development
Interim Head of
Internal Audit
and Counter
Fraud
Interim Head of
Internal Audit
and Counter
Fraud

It was agreed to circulate the report published by
CIPFA.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

2

Minutes

To provide details of findings from the Continuous
Audit Monitoring (CAM) audit, preceding the removal
of Housing Services from the CAM programme.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

7

Calculations
of
Council Tax Base
To report on when a property ceased to be new build
and National Nonand became an empty dwelling.
Domestic
Rates
Return

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Group Manager
for Strategic
Finance

12

Audit
Investigations
Update

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Interim Head of
Internal Audit
and Counter
Fraud

27.09.18

06.12.19

Description

and

Officers agreed to confirm what element of the LEAP
project was audited to members outside the meeting.

18

Page 42

8

Due Date

No.

12

13

14

16

21.03.19

21.03.19

21.03.19

06.12.18

24.01.19

Meeting
Date
06.12.19

26.07.18

06.12.18

26.07.18

26.07.18

Agenda
Item

Description

Action

Owner

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Interim Head of
Internal Audit
and Counter
Fraud

To be included in
future reports

Chief Executive

5

Audit
Investigations
Update

9

The proposals would come back to the Committee
after the statutory consultation. With further detail on
Future
Lambeth
attracting
investment,
commercial
approach,
Organisational
understanding risk, utilising assets, more feedback
Change
and collective development, administration’s values,
libraries and how directorates would work together.

8

Children’s
Social
Care
–
Risk To provide Members with the Risk Register.
Management

To be provided
outside the
meeting

4

Annual Governance S20 leaseholder income, officers would report outside
Statement
AGS the meeting on service charge invoices and working
2017/18
effectiveness.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

5

Statement
of
It was not possible to add information on people off
Accounts 2017/18
the payroll for publication purposes, but would be
and External Audit
explored outside the meeting and brought back.
Report

To be covered in
future report

Head of
Contracts and
Programmes,

To review the apparent £500m discrepancy in
transparency data.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Assistant
Director for
Strategic
Finance

Policy To provide members with data and trends on staff
numbers starting above the base salary.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Interim Director
for HR and OD

17

21.03.19

24.01.19

5

PNQ

18

21.03.19

24.01.19

8

Pay
Statement

and

Comments

To report back on the Holland Rise TMO audit

19

Strategic
Director of
Children’s
Services
Chris Flynn,
Transition and
Improvement
Manager

Page 43

15

Due Date

No.
19

20

Due Date
Ongoing

21.03.19

Meeting
Date
24.01.19

24.01.19

Agenda
Item
11

11

Description
Audit
Investigations
Update
Audit
Investigations
Update

Action
and

Comments

Benchmarked fraud transparency data (agenda pack, To be included in a
page 200) to be provided in a future report.
future report

and To report back on the Jessop Stockwell Federation
and on councillors’ potential DBS checks.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Owner
Interim Head
IACF
Interim Head
IACF

Page 44

20

Page 45

Agenda Item 8.b

Council 17 July 2019
Report title: Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2018-19
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for the Voluntary Sector & Partnerships (Job Share): Councillor Jim Dickson
Report Authorised by: Director of Legal & Governance: Alison McKane
Contact for enquiries: Gary O’Key, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Legal & Governance; 020 7926
2183, gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
Scrutiny is required to report annually to Full Council. The attached report sets out the activities of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee and scrutiny commissions
during 2018–19.

Finance summary
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Recommendations
1.
That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2018-19 be approved.

Page 46
1.
1.1

Context
The attached report provides an account of the activities of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee,
Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee and scrutiny commissions in the 2018-19 municipal
year.

2.
2.1

Proposal and Reasons
Scrutiny is a key democratic mechanism for holding public service decision-makers and providers in
Lambeth to account and facilitating the improvement of public services in the area. Working with
citizens and professionals, scrutiny councillors undertake the following roles:
a. monitor, question and investigate the performance of the Council’s Cabinet, individual
decision-makers and council services;
b. develop, review and make recommendations for the improvement of services and activities
commissioned by the council;
c. hold the Cabinet and officers making decisions on behalf of the council to account in public;
and,
d. scrutinise other public service providers’ work and its impact on the local community.

2.2

Effective scrutiny enhances accountability, ensures transparency of decision-making, contributes to
service improvement and acts as a ‘check and balance’ on decision-makers.

2.3

Scrutiny is required to report annually to Full Council on its activities. The attached report sets out
the activities in the municipal year 2018-19.

3.
3.1

Finance
There are no specific capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report.

4.
4.1

Legal and Democracy
The role and functions of Overview and Scrutiny are set out in Part 3, Section 6 of the Council’s
Constitution, which includes the requirement that Overview & Scrutiny Committee (and its SubCommittee(s) and commissions) must report annually to full Council on their workings and make
recommendations for future work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate.

4.2

There are no further comments from Democratic Services.

5.
5.1

Consultation and co-production
As set out in the annual report.

6.

Risk management
None.

7.

Equalities impact assessment
None.

8.

Community safety
None.

9.

Organisational implications
None

10.

Timetable for implementation
Not applicable.

Page 47
Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Donatus
Anyanwu

Councillor Liz Atkins

Alison McKane, Director
Wayne Chandai,
Democratic Services &
Scrutiny Manager
Nisar Visram
Assistant Director,
Corporate Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services

Lambeth directorate /
department or partner
Cabinet Member for the
Voluntary Sector & Partnerships
and Chair, Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (2017/18)
Chair, Children’s Services
Scrutiny Sub-Committee
(2017/18) and Chair, Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
(2018/19)
Legal & Governance
Legal & Governance

Date Sent

Date
Received

03.07.19

08.07.19

03.07.19

06.07.19

03.07.19

08.07.19

03.07.19

03.07.19

Comments in
paragraph:

Finance & Investment

03.07.19

03.07.19

3.1 and
Finance
Summary

Legal & Governance

03.07.19

04.07.19

4.1

Report History
Original
discussion
Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part
II
Exempt
Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report

with N/A
03.07.19
08.07.19
from No

No

Date first appeared on forward N/A
plan
Key decision reasons
N/A
Background information

Agenda and minutes of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=113

Appendices

Appendix 1: Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2018/19

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

London Borough of Lambeth

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Annual Report 2018-19

Page 50

Chair’s Foreword
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee have given me and Committee members the
avenue to examine in depth the Council’s policies and the mechanisms to deliver
them. I am ever thankful to the Vice Chairs and the Chair of Children’s Services
Scrutiny Sub-Committee who have given me fantastic support during the year. I am
also very grateful to all the members of the committee who contributed a lot
throughout the year with their skills and knowledge of all the areas that we looked at
to add value to the lives of our residents.
As can be seen the areas covered this year were key to the wellbeing of our
residents. We started by scrutinising the corporate strategy and priorities while also
examining the medium term financial strategy. We then had a meeting solely
dedicated to housing issues where residents came and gave us their experiences
and the Cabinet Member outlined his plans and answered members’ and residents’
concerns. The Crime and Disorder meeting brought all the Safer Lambeth
Partnership members together where residents including young people and those
affected by violence were able to question and discuss matters regarding serious
youth violence in light of the increased prevalence of knife crime affecting young
people. The Budget meeting provided members the opportunity to focus on the
budget overview and financial implications for the Council which was set out in the
December Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy Report 2018-2023, and
the savings proposals to meet the funding gap. At the meeting, the committee
focused its scrutiny on reserves, income generation and the potential impact of the
significant savings targets set out for Children’s and Adults’ services, with particular
concerns raised regarding the possible front line impacts on social care (both adults’
and children’s). We made a number of observations and recommendations to
Cabinet which can be seen in this report. In January, we scrutinised the Council’s
draft Transport Strategy and, alongside this, took the second and final formal update
of the action plan resulting from 2017’s Equality Streets Scrutiny Commission, which
examined various issues regarding active travel and its associated positive impacts
on health and air quality as well as parking and public realm design. This was
particularly timely, as it took place just days after Full Council declared a climate
emergency and passed a resolution for the borough to become carbon neutral by
2030. In addition to these, the committee also looked at Jobs and Skills which was
attended by the new leader of the council Cllr Jack Hopkins. Also we heard from
charities and social enterprises engaged in employment support in the borough, and
Job Centre Plus representatives.
May I thank all of the Members, officers and individuals who were involved in the
Scrutiny Commissions, particularly the Events Commission chaired by Cllr Mary
Atkins. I am sure that your work will add value to the council’s Events policies and
improve relationships with residents. I am ever thankful to members of Children’s
Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee; as can be seen from this they have focused on
important issues that are of concern to our residents and particularly our young

Page 51

people. Finally I was honoured to have worked with such fantastic officers from the
Democratic Services and Scrutiny team who made my job and that of the Members
easy by making sure that we were focused – thanks a lot. I am also grateful to all the
residents and the public who attended our meetings and gave us their views and
experiences without which we could not have got the evidence that enabled us to
carry out our scrutiny this year.

Cllr Donatus Anyanwu
Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 52

Context
This report provides an account of the activities of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
and its commissions, as well as the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee (CSSC), during
the 2018-19 municipal year. For reporting purposes, this covers the period from May 2018 to
April 2019.

1. Introduction: the scrutiny process and structure in Lambeth
Overview and Scrutiny is a key part of the democratic process of the council. The purpose of
scrutiny and the activities undertaken by scrutiny councillors is to enable members who are not
part of the Executive (Cabinet) to engage with and influence the policy development and
decision-making of the council. They do this by reviewing or scrutinising decisions made by the
council (and by some key partners), by contributing to the development of strategies and policies,
and by making reports and recommendations on matters which are the responsibility of the
authority or which affect the local area.
The Lambeth model of scrutiny comprises an overarching Overview and Scrutiny Committee
which is responsible for scrutinising the whole range of the council’s functions as well as
exercising statutory responsibilities for health scrutiny (including the establishment of any joint
health scrutiny arrangements that may be set up with other boroughs) and for crime and disorder
scrutiny. In addition, at its AGM on 19 April 2017, Council approved the establishment of a
Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee covering the provision, planning and management
of all children and young people’s services. This built on the work of the Improving Children’s
Services Scrutiny Commission, which was set up in July 2015 to provide governance oversight
and challenge with respect to the Council’s improvement journey following the Ofsted inspection
report of May 2015 which judged Lambeth’s Children’s Services to be ‘inadequate’. When
matters are identified which require more in-depth scrutiny, OSC may establish short term task
and finish groups (‘scrutiny commissions’). Terms of reference and operational arrangements for
Overview and Scrutiny and the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee are set out in the
council’s constitution (Part 3, Section 6).
Accordingly scrutiny provides backbench members with the opportunity to question cabinet
members, senior officers and other statutory partners on their proposals and hold them to
account for their decisions and for the delivery of anticipated outcomes. Through commissions,
scrutiny councillors in Lambeth undertake in-depth investigations on specific issues, including the
work of other public service providers and its impact on the local community, and can make
recommendations to support the ambitions of the authority. Scrutiny also seeks to involve the
public and provide a voice for local people on the local issues that affect them or may be of
concern.
Through these arrangements scrutiny is used to hold public-service providers in Lambeth to
account and help improve the public services in the area. Effective scrutiny improves
accountability, ensures transparency of decision-making, contributes to service improvement and
acts as a 'check and balance' on decision-makers.

Page 53

2. Work Planning
OSC has a chair and two vice-chairs. Each vice-chair leads on a particular set of priorities as set
out below, with the chair covering overall strategy plus any other areas not included within the
vice-chair remit. The holders of these posts for the 2018/19 municipal year were:

Cllr Donatus
Anyanwu
Chair




Cllr Mary Atkins
Vice Chair

Cllr Danial
Adilypour
Vice Chair

Cllr Anyanwu responsible for: Finance; Equalities; overall strategy and direction
Cllr Atkins responsible for: Culture, Community Safety, Environment and Air Quality
Cllr Adilypour responsible for: Health, Adult Social Care, Housing, Employment and
Enterprise

The chair and vice chairs continued with their schedule of regular informal meetings in order to
provide a steer on operational issues and work planning, as well as discussing more strategic
matters concerning the scrutiny function. In 2018/19 the quarterly briefing sessions established
previously between each vice chair and their corresponding strategic director(s) were continued,
having been successful in providing opportunities to better engage around horizon scanning and
issues for future scrutiny, as well as following up on relevant issues. This was done in light of the
following principles underpinning the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the commissions it
sponsors and the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee:
-

Be independent from the administration and stakeholders;
Be accessible and inclusive of everyone in the borough;
Enable decisions to be challenged constructively;
Strive for better services that produce the best outcomes;
Base its decisions and recommendations on the best evidence available;
Follow up its recommendations.

The fact that 2018/19 was the first municipal year following the borough council elections of May
2018 meant that there were wholesale changes to the scrutiny membership, including some
members who had been elected for the first time. While this presented some initial challenges in
terms of training and development, it did enable full ownership of the work programme by the
new committee. This was also the first time since the abolition of the sub-committee structure in
2014 that OSC had a fixed membership, thereby allowing members to build their knowledge and
skills meeting by meeting as the year progressed. Pre-meetings continued to be held prior to
each scheduled OSC at a stage that could seek the input of all committee members; these also
enabled informal discussion of work programme priorities.

Page 54

3. Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Membership
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee comprises nine councillors – seven from the majority
Labour Group, one from the minority Green Group and the sole Conservative councillor – plus
two education co-opted members (who may vote only on education issues and therefore in
practice attend the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee), thereby enabling a genuine
cross party approach:











Cllr Donatus Anyanwu – Chair
Cllr Mary Atkins – Vice Chair
Cllr Danny Adilypour – Vice Chair
Cllr Liz Atkins – Chair of Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Cllr Peter Ely
Cllr Maria Kay
Cllr David Amos
Cllr Jonathan Bartley – Leader of the Opposition (Green)
Cllr Tim Briggs – Opposition Member (Conservative)
Education co-opted members: Lynette Murphy O’Dwyer and Penny Smith-Orr (in practice the
co-opted members attended Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee as this is the
scrutiny body whose remit covers education and related matters).

The committee held six scheduled meetings in the 2018/19 reporting period. Outline meeting
themes were established in the weeks and months prior to each meeting, which enabled the
committee to focus the bulk of each meeting on a particular area or set of cohesive priorities. The
outline meeting themes comprised: Council Strategy; Housing; Crime and Disorder; Budget;
Transport; and Jobs & Skills.
Key issues that the committee considered during the year are set out below. Full details of
reports and minutes of the meetings can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=113



Meeting theme: Council Strategy (July 2018)

The first Overview & Scrutiny Committee of the reporting period provided the newly appointed
committee with an opportunity to examine the ‘bigger picture’ by scrutinising the Council’s
corporate strategy and priorities while also examining the medium term financial strategy.
The (then) Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive attended to outline the intention to
revise the Borough Plan in response to developments over the past three years and reaffirm their
commitment to taking forward the recommendations of the 2017 Equality Commission. Members
suggested a greater role for public consultation in determining where the authority’s budget
should be spent, as well as stressing the importance of scrutiny input into the new Borough Plan
at an appropriate juncture. Concerns were raised that, although employment figures were
currently high, this may mask problems with the quality of jobs, levels of pay and stability of

Page 55

employment arising from the changing nature of work in the borough. As a result of this it was
suggested that a jobs and skills focused meeting be held later in the year.
Members heard from the Cabinet Member for Finance and the Director of Finance and Property
on the Council’s financial strategy covering the period to 2022/23 and concern was expressed at
the uncertainty faced by local authorities regarding future finance settlements, as well as the
funding gap to be filled over the four year period concerned. Committee members provided
challenges regarding the possibility for procurement pooling arrangements to contribute to
savings or achieve greater social value, and the potential for a voluntary top rate of council tax to
raise additional income. Assurances were also sought regarding the long term funding of public
health if the current ring-fenced grant was rolled into the business rates retention scheme as
planned.
The meeting ended with a wide ranging discussion on the committee’s work programme for the
year, with housing and community safety being cited as particular priorities. Outline approval was
also given for the establishment of a scrutiny commission aimed at complementing the review of
the Lambeth Events Strategy (see also section 5).



Meeting theme: Housing (September 2018)

The September meeting was dedicated to housing issues, with Members looking at resident
involvement, major works associated with the Lambeth Housing Standard programme, and the
issues facing the private rented sector in the borough.
Members heard from the Cabinet Member for Housing and the Resident Engagement Manager
on progress since the report of the Resident Involvement in Housing Scrutiny Commission,
whose findings were approved by Cabinet in 2016. Successes were noted, such as the widening
in the demographics of residents engaging with the Council, particularly in relation to the
Lambeth 500+ initiative, whose members were far more representative of the borough’s
population than previous, more traditional structures. However, there remained more work to be
done to address some of the areas of improvement highlighted by the commission, particularly
around communications between Tenants’ & Residents’ Associations, ward councillors and Area
Boards; the publication of agendas, minutes and Terms of Reference for the new engagement
structures; and the delegation of budgets to Area Boards to empower them to affect, and ‘own’,
positive change in their locality (though it was noted that urgent fire safety works in the aftermath
of the Grenfell Tower disaster had impeded this last objective).
On the Lambeth Housing Standard (LHS), the committee examined the process around the
issuing of Section 20 notices to leaseholders in relation to major works, expressing concern at
the sometimes significant bills faced by residents and the amount of notice given in advance of
the payment deadline. Members also challenged the robustness of the performance information
collected in this area, recommending changes to key performance indicators related to resident
satisfaction in order that this could be broken down into a series of subsets.
In relation to concern at the rising cost of renting in Lambeth and the variable standard of rental
accommodation, the committee noted the work being done to devise a Private Rented Sector
strategy and backed the concept of a Landlords’ Forum to share information and best practice,
while also stressing the need for extensive engagement with private tenants in the borough to
feed into the strategy.

Page 56



Meeting theme: Crime and Disorder (November 2018)

The November OSC meeting was the annual scrutiny of the Safer Lambeth Partnership – the
statutory community safety partnership for the borough consisting of the Council, Police, Fire
Service, Probation and other key partners. This was timed to enable the feeding in of
observations and recommendations from the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee’s
October meeting, which focused on young people at risk.
The meeting had a particular focus on serious youth violence in light of the increased prevalence
of knife crime affecting young people, particularly in the capital, and heard from some of those
responsible for running programmes aimed at diverting those most at risk away from violent
crime regarding what more could be done. The committee also heard compelling testimony from
young people themselves regarding their experiences and views on potential solutions. While the
borough’s ‘public health’ approach to tackling serious youth violence was endorsed, Members felt
that more data collection and statistical analysis was required to enable robust assessments of
progress to be made. It was also stressed that such a strategy could not work without the
involvement of the community at every stage, and the committee urged the Cabinet Member for
the Voluntary Sector, Partnerships and Community Safety to do everything possible to support
and empower grass roots diversionary activities to engage young people. The need for an
appropriate level of support in schools was also discussed, in particular with regards to
addressing potential problems at source and ensuring community intelligence was appropriately
harnessed.
Away from serious youth violence, the committee scrutinised the annual Safer Lambeth
Partnership performance and priorities report and raised questions regarding the efficacy of the
Prevent counter-terrorism strategy and its implications for front line staff such as teachers and
social workers.



Meeting theme: Budget (December 2018)

At its December meeting, OSC considered the budget overview and financial implications for the
Council set out in the December Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy Report 20182023, and the savings proposals to meet the funding gap. The committee focused its scrutiny
principally around reserves, income generation and the potential impact of the significant savings
targets set out for Children’s and Adults’ services, with particular concerns raised regarding the
possible front line impacts on social care (both adults’ and children’s), foster care and the Youth
Offending Service. The committee made a number of observations and recommendations to
Cabinet as set out below, which OSC plans to monitor in future budget focused meetings.
RESOLVED:
1. To note the plans to raise revenue via increased fees and charges but to request
information on the amounts raised from past such increases, and whether expected
targets were met, in order to provide reassurance to the committee that the assumptions
made are realistic.

Page 57

2. To request more information regarding the rationale for seeking to increase reserves to
10% of the net general fund budget and how Lambeth’s reserves position compares to
those of other London Boroughs.
3. To note the committee’s concern at the potential front line impact of moving from 7% to
10% reserves in the next four years and urge the Council to look again at the feasibility of
this approach given the risks involved in the savings plans presented.
4. That, whilst reassured by the comprehensive answers given to the committee’s
questions by the Strategic Director for Children’s Services and the Interim Strategic
Director for Adults and Health, the committee remains extremely concerned at the level
of service changes proposed in Children’s Services and Adult Social Care and the impact
this could have on the borough’s most vulnerable residents, as well as the feasibility of
delivering the savings proposed. In particular the committee wishes to highlight the
projected savings related to children’s social care, adult social care (and the transition
between the two), fostering and the Youth Offending Service as particular areas of
concern and the need for future scrutiny of progress against savings target.
5. Arising from (4) above,
(i) Noting that Children’s Services saving rely heavily on increasing in house
foster care, the committee recommends that an action plan is developed with
stakeholders including the foster carers association and monitored closely by
Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee with feedback on financial savings
on a regular basis to CSSC.
(ii) The committee recognises that adult social care savings are ambitious, are
frontloaded and rely on a successful organisational redesign. The committee
would recommend that monitored saving come to OSC on a 6 monthly basis.
6. That it is vital the Council does everything possible to systematically and strategically
increase its income generation activity; accordingly the committee wishes to scrutinise
the Council’s commercial strategy at a future OSC meeting.
7. To note the importance of contract management, renegotiation and procurement in
delivering the savings plans and to urge the Council to redouble its efforts in this regard
in order to ensure a robust strategic approach and take advantage of forthcoming
opportunities (the committee notes that the Procurement Annual Report is due at
Corporate Committee in the new year and wishes to see a copy of this when ready).
8. To request further detail in relation to the capital programme when this becomes
available
This meeting also took a report on the implications of the lifting of the Housing Revenue Account
borrowing cap by the Government. The Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment and New
Homes stressed that although this enabled the Council to borrow more, such borrowing still
needed to be affordable for the Council.

Page 58



Meeting theme: Transport (January 2019)

In January, OSC scrutinised the Council’s draft Transport Strategy and, alongside this, took the
second and final formal update of the action plan resulting from 2017’s Equality Streets Scrutiny
Commission, which examined various issues regarding active travel and its associated positive
impacts on health and air quality as well as parking and public realm design. This was
particularly timely, taking place as it did just days after Full Council declared a climate emergency
and passed a resolution for the borough to become carbon neutral by 2030.
The committee heard from the Cabinet Member for Environment and Clean Air and the Transport
Manager on the Council’s aspirations to promote walking and cycling, increase electric vehicle
charging infrastructure and reduce reliance on the private car. Members questioned the funding
allocations within the forthcoming implementation plan and challenged decision makers to ensure
these were properly aligned with strategic objectives. There were also questions raised regarding
the extent to which the measures contained in the strategy would support those who lived in
more deprived areas of the borough, which tended to have reduced access to public transport
and active travel options (including related infrastructure). It was further stressed that, given the
carbon neutral commitment, it was essential that the Transport Strategy Implementation Plan
contain detailed targets to support this. Members also challenged decision makers to consider
whether a workplace parking levy could form part of the solution. In scrutinising the Equality
Streets action plan Members urged more action on joined up enforcement functions, and in
particular tackling engine idling.
This meeting also received the first planned update in relation to the Accessibility of Council
Digital Services Scrutiny Commission, which reported to Cabinet in 2018. The commission’s
findings were being taken on board in the development of the Council’s Digital Strategy. The
committee again stressed the importance of clear, relevant and robust performance monitoring to
assess progress against the strategy and associated targets.



Meeting theme: Jobs and Skills (March 2019)

At its March meeting – the final OSC of the municipal year – the committee turned its focus to
employment and skills in Lambeth. This followed on from discussions at the July 2018 OSC as
noted above, and coincided with the first update of the Jobs For All Scrutiny Commission.
This was the first appearance before the committee of Cllr Jack Hopkins, elected Leader of the
Council in February 2019 following the departure of Cllr Lib Peck, in his role as the lead Member
for Jobs, Skills and Performance. As well as Cllr Hopkins and the Head of Economic Inclusion,
the committee also heard from charities and social enterprises engaged in employment support
in the borough, and Job Centre Plus representatives. The committee stressed the importance of
improving outreach activity to match jobseekers to suitable support programmes and/or
vacancies, particularly in relation to those furthest from the job market such as residents with
learning disabilities or mental health issues. Members also stressed that, although flexible
working including self-employment was suitable for some people, there were concerns that
others may be being exploited and requested further analysis to dig further into the “gig

Page 59

economy”. In their scrutiny of the progress made against the recommendations since the Jobs
For All commission report was approved the previous year, the committee Members focused on
the best way of systematically measuring social value and acknowledged the positive role played
by business networks, while expressing concern that those small businesses who were not part
of Business Improvement Districts required greater support. Tributes were paid to former
councillor Matt Parr, who served as Vice Chair of Overview & Scrutiny for four years from 201418 and chaired the commission, who sadly passed away in 2018.

4. Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Membership

Cllr Liz Atkins
Chair


Cllr Malcolm Cllr Mahamed
Clark
Hashi

Cllr Phillip
Normal

Cllr Emma
Nye

Cllr Nicole
Griffiths

Plus Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer (statutory co-optee), Penny Smith-Orr (statutory co-optee).

The remit of the Children’s Services Sub-committee (CSSC) covers the range of services and
provision for children and young people in Lambeth: children’s social care; safeguarding children;
children in care; education, learning and schools, early years, special education needs and
disability (SEND); youth and play services; and Youth Offending Services (YOS). The terms of
reference were well reflected in the work of the committee during 2018/19 and up to four
substantive reports were considered at each of the committee’s four meetings. The headline
issues scrutinised are set out below, reports and minutes can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=778





Children’s Social Care
Improvement Strategy 2 x;
Ofsted Inspection;
Raising Achievement in
Lambeth Schools
Lambeth School Inspection
Outcomes







Lambeth Safeguarding Children’s
Board: Young People at Risk
SEND
Budget
Addressing Childhood Obesity
Emotional Health and Wellbeing

Children’s Social Care
A key focus for the committee throughout the year was the safeguarding of the borough’s most
vulnerable children and young people, with Members providing challenge and seeking assurance
that the help, care and protection afforded by the council and partners continues to improve.
Accordingly the committee took an ongoing interest in the progress being made in delivering the
children’s social care improvement plan, receiving an update report at the July and March
meetings and putting questions to the Deputy Leader for Children and Young People and the
Strategic Director, Children’s Services at each meeting.

Page 60

The Ofsted inspection report, which had found the service to no longer be ‘inadequate’, was
published on 9 May 2018 and was considered by the Committee at its meeting in July. The
Committee welcomed the progress made by the service since the 2015 inspection, while noting
concerns regarding the adoption service. Adoption had been a particular concern of Ofsted at
the 2015 inspection, and a Recruitment Strategy had been developed. Members requested
update reports on the Improvement Programme, which was presented at the March meeting.
The Children’s Services Budget was considered at the December meeting, with Members raising
concerns regarding the proposed changes to services, and potential impact on vulnerable
residents. The changing demographics of the cohort of Looked After Children, with increasing
numbers of teenagers entering Care, was noted, and Members encouraged greater engagement
with the Children in Care Council.
There were still high numbers of agency staff and external foster carers, and the Sub-Committee
expressed the need to reduce reliance through initiatives such as Frontline and an evaluation of
the fostering recruitment campaign. Reducing the number of agency social workers was part of
the Improvement Plan, and Members requested that progress be reviewed.
Young People at Risk
The Sub-Committee focused on young people at risk at its October meeting, following increasing
rates of serious youth violence and high numbers of first time entrants to the criminal justice
system, and the need for the Council to address this. Parents of excluded pupils, the Director of
a community centre, Cllr Mary Atkins, the Headteacher of a Lambeth secondary school and a
representative from the Young Lambeth Co-operative provided verbal evidence to the SubCommittee. While the Council acknowledged the need to ensure the safety of young people,
such as the development of the ‘Raising the Game’ programme and the Young People at Risk
strategy, the Sub-Committee noted the lack of evidence of interventions and their success, and
expressed the need to obtain evidence on the outcomes of such interventions.
The Sub-Committee heard from officers and a Lambeth Headteacher that permanent exclusions
were used as a last resort and managed moves and other interventions were utilised to reduce
the number of permanent exclusions, and from parents of excluded pupils of the effect that
permanent exclusions had on young people, and the vulnerability of young people not in
education to gangs and mental health difficulties. Members expressed the need for improved
early identification of children at risk of exclusion, and improved joint working between the
Council and schools to reduce the risk of exclusion. Having heard from parents and the Deputy
Leader for Children and Young People on cases where young people were not in education
following a permanent exclusion, the Sub-Committee emphasised the need to provide more
support to prevent children from becoming absent from education, and to use data to identify
trends and the outcomes of children who are excluded. Members were informed of the
‘Dunraven model’, which aimed for zero permanent exclusions through the provision of individual
support, and requested the exploration of the possibility of the expansion of such an approach.
Parents and the representative of the community centre raised the issue around the language
and processes surrounding permanent exclusions, and the lack of alternative options for
educational provision following permanent exclusion. The Sub-Committee expressed the need
to involve parents and young people throughout the exclusion process, and to provide accessible
information.
The Sub-Committee heard of the development of a Young People at Risk Strategy, which
covered sexual exploitation, children missing from home and those at risk of radicalisation, and

Page 61

aimed to improve the protection of children and their families. The Strategy would require
greater engagement between the Council and partners, particularly schools. Members noted the
correlation between children missing from education and those involved in serious youth
violence, sexual exploitation and criminal exploitation, and stated that need for schools to be
accountable for accurate monitoring of children missing from education. Members raised
concerns that Return Home interviews sometimes did not take place.
Education
The Sub-Committee considered reports on school inspections, achievement in schools and
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND), with a particular focus on data and
monitoring.
The Sub-Committee noted the improvements in schools performance for Somali children, who
were now achieving better than the national average and Portuguese-speaking children.
However, the underachievement of Black Caribbean pupils persisted, and Lambeth had
undertaken research to identify good practice. The Lambeth Schools Partnership had improved
engagement between the Council and schools. The Sub-Committee congratulated pupils,
parents, teachers and staff on their achievements.
School inspection outcomes again indicated that the quality of schools in Lambeth continued to
be high, with 85% of schools evaluated by Ofsted in 2016/17 judged to be ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’.
The Sub-Committee expressed the need to address adverse experiences in early years.
The Sub-Committee received verbal evidence from a GMB Education Convenor and a Therapist
at the Park Campus Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) regarding SEND. The number of children with
SEND had increased, and Lambeth had more children with SEND than the national average.
Members expressed the need for all children to be given the opportunities to achieve their full
potential. The opening of a new special school in January 2020 was expected to reduce the
number of children with SEND being educated out of the borough, and the Sub-Committee
requested data on this. Pupil Referral Units were often stigmatised, which needed to be
challenged, and the Sub-Committee suggested greater support and positive coverage of PRUs.
Reintegration of pupils attending PRUs, and the length of time that pupils were educated at
PRUs was a perceived issue, and this should be reviewed. The Sub-Committee considered that
the ‘Dunraven model’ of avoiding exclusions could be used for children with SEND.
Health
At its March meeting, the Sub-Committee received reports on addressing childhood obesity and
healthy weight and on emotional health and wellbeing. The Sub-Committee heard from the
Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care (Job Share), the Deputy Cabinet Member for
Youth and Play, representatives from the South London and Maudsley NHS Trust on mental
health and from the Lambeth Food Partnership on healthy weight.
The Sub-Committee raised concerns regarding Lambeth’s comparatively high levels of childhood
obesity, noting the link between poverty and obesity and the Council’s efforts to encourage
healthy lifestyles. Members emphasised the need to work with partners and the community to
improve obesity and activity rate, as well as to ensure that health is considered across all Council
policies.
With regard to emotional health and wellbeing, the Sub-Committee focussed on the work of the
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), early intervention work, and the process

Page 62

for referrals, noting that long waiting times were a local and national issue. Members expressed
the need to monitor and review interventions regularly, and the importance of holding accurate
data. Long waiting times for CAMHS treatment was raised throughout the year, with a perceived
increase in demand and corresponding increase in waiting times. Witnesses raised the issue of
potential deteriorations in symptoms while young people were waiting for treatment, and
Members requested a review of the available interventions.

5. Scrutiny Commissions
In addition to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Children’s Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee, scrutiny commissions provide an opportunity for more detailed investigations of
specific issues by a group of councillors. Commission reports and recommendations are
approved by OSC on completion and then submitted to Cabinet (or relevant body) for
consideration and action planning.
Below is an overview of commission activity in 2018/19. Given that this was the first year of the
municipal term, resulting in many new members who were approaching scrutiny from a ‘standing
start’, coupled with the fact that an organisational restructure part way through the year placed
restrictions on available resources to support scrutiny commissions, only one new commission
was established in this period. However, action plan updates were received and scrutinised in
respect of four commissions which had reported their findings in previous years: Resident
Involvement in Housing, Equality Streets, Accessibility of Council Digital Services and Jobs For
All. Further details of the progress made in responding to the findings of these commissions can
be found in section 3 above.

Events Commission
Membership: Cllr Mary Atkins (chair), Cllr Nigel Haselden, Cllr Philip Normal and Cllr Becca
Thackray
Major commercial events in parks and open spaces are becoming a common feature in many
London boroughs and beyond, largely due to local authorities expanding and diversifying their
cultural offerings in response to ongoing budget pressures. These events have the potential to
deliver significant community benefits – for example, enabling work experience, paid employment
or apprenticeship opportunities; providing free or concessionary tickets for local people who
otherwise may struggle to afford them; awarding grants to community organisations; or boosting
trade for local businesses. However, such benefits packages are not currently approached in a
consistent, systematic way and rely heavily on active local ward councillor engagement and
relationships which can vary from area to area, meaning opportunities may be being lost. The
Events Commission, established in the autumn of 2018 following an initial proposal from Cllr Mary
Atkins, OSC Vice Chair leading on culture, was therefore set up to evaluate current practice and
explore how processes could be improved to maximise the benefits delivered via major commercial
events and ensure they work for everyone. This work was timed to coincide with and complement
the review of the Council’s 2016 Events Strategy.
The commission considered a variety of information provided from officers on the benefits
delivered via events held since the strategy came into force, together with good practice examples
from such bodies as independent charity Parks for London, the Greater London Assembly
Environment Committee, and the Digital, Culture, Media and Sport Select Committee. Following

Page 63

its research phase the commission then arranged an engagement session to which a variety of
key stakeholders with a broad range of views were invited. This began with key note speeches
from the Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, the Chief Executive of Parks for London, and
an event organiser who had worked with the council to set the scene. There followed a series of
round table discussions, facilitated and mediated by the four commission members, to gather
participants’ views on what was and wasn’t working currently and how they believed improvements
might be made. These proved extremely insightful and provided a great deal of food for thought
which commission members were able to take on board when considering their findings.
At the time of writing the commission is in its final phase, devising recommendations for
improvement to be reported to Cabinet. It is anticipated that the commission’s final report will be
completed in autumn 2019.

6. Joint Health Scrutiny
As noted in the introduction, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds a statutory
responsibility to scrutinise health arrangements in the borough. Where health service changes
are proposed which impact across borough boundaries, these are considered via joint health
overview and scrutiny committee (JOSC) arrangements involving consideration of proposals by
councillors appointed from the boroughs affected. In 2018/19 Cllr Danial Adilypour and Cllr Phillip
Normal represented Lambeth on the Our Healthier South East London JOSC, with Cllr Normal
also being appointed as the Vice Chair.

Our Healthier South East London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OHSEL
JHOSC)
Our Healthier South East London is the NHS Sustainability and Transformation Partnership
(STP) for South East London (SEL). The programme is led by the six NHS Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in the region – Bexley, Bromley, Greenwich, Lambeth,
Lewisham and Southwark – and accordingly the JOSC comprises two members from each of
these six boroughs. The project aims to improve health and care across SEL with a focus on
closing the gap around three headline issues – the health and wellbeing gap; the care and quality
gap; and the funding and efficiency gap. The JOSC is looking at the associated plans,
questioning on delivery of proposals and the issues for local communities, and presenting
challenge. A proposal to centralise Planned Orthopaedic Care on two sites (and which was
expected to be subject to formal public consultation in 2017) was withdrawn in July whilst a three
site option is tested over the next 12-18 months on whether this can deliver the required quality
and efficiency benefits.
The JOSC has met nine times since it was set up in 2015/16. There were two meetings in 201819. The meeting in September 2018 considered an update on the work programme of the STP.
Members questioned the STP around devolved responsibilities for primary care, arrangements
for urgent and emergency care, the need for transformation of Orthopaedic services, an update
on the commissioning of Pathology Services for the STP and the status of Local Care Networks.
NHS representatives were also able to provide information to the Committee on their planning for
winter pressures and plans for digital transformation of services across the partnership.
At its meeting in March 2019 the JHOSC were updated on Emergency and Urgent Care in South
East London, the decision on Hyper Acute Stroke Units in Kent, and were consulted on the

Page 64

proposal to move Moorfields Eye Hospital from Islington to St. Pancras Hospital. The Committee
also received a report from the STP providing information on population health and life
expectancy across the STP area and comparing it nationally. This report was requested by the
Committee at its previous meeting, and it outlined some of the key plans that were being taken
forward to address the slowdown in life expectancy improvements. These included efforts to cut
obesity and smoking, as well as initiatives to limit alcohol related A&E visits.
The JHOSC will have an important role in scrutinising the work of the STP in 2019/20, as the
proposal to merge the South East London CCGs into one CCG will be scrutinised by the JHOSC.
This is a major strategic change to primary healthcare in Lambeth (and across South East
London) and consultation with the JHOSC will be vital to provide democratic accountability on the
technical details of this reorganisation.

Page 65

Agenda Item 9

Council, 17 July 2019
Council Motions
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Acting Strategic Director Corproate Resources: Christina Thompson
Contact for enquiries:
Wayne Chandai, Head of Chief Executive’s Office and Democratic Services Manager, 020 7926
0029, wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
Motions and amendments submitted by Councillors, in accordance with Standing Order 13, are
set out below. Motion 1 and 2 will be debated as per council and committee rules and procedures.
Key to shading:
Bold – additions
Strikethrough – deletions
Motion 1: Green
Climate Emergency: Next steps
Full Council notes:
●

●
●
●
●
●
●

In January 2019 Lambeth became the first London council to declare a climate
emergency after it backed the Green Party’s motion to become carbon neutral by 2030.
Six months later the Council have still not set out clear plans for addressing the
emergency and the council’s Climate Change Action Plan is months away from being
finalised.
The council must take urgent action and make the right choices in order to put significant
resources behind tackling the climate emergency.
Lambeth has the opportunity to lead London in this area and seek innovative, creative
solutions to environmental and social problems.
The challenges we have to face are wide-ranging and require significant changes at
every level that the council operates.
The climate emergency must be at the heart of all the council’s decision making, moving
forward.
Urgent, radical change is required and the residents of Lambeth need the opportunity to
be actively involved.
Local Authorities are in a unique position to lead the way in tackling climate change
locally alongside residents, businesses and organisations.

Page 66
Council further notes:
●

●
●

Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) are used to predict environmental impact at
an early stage in project planning and design, to find ways and means to reduce adverse
impacts and to shape projects, providing options to a decision-maker.
EIAs must take into account inter-related socio-economic, cultural and human-health
impacts, both beneficial and adverse.
A 2016 study commissioned by the Architects for Social Housing found that demolishing
Lambeth’s housing estates would exact a high carbon price on the environment and a
conservative estimate for the embodied carbon released on demolition of Central Hill
Estate alone are around 7000 tonnes of CO2 e.

Council resolves:
●
●

●

●
●
●

●

To assess the current overall carbon footprint of Lambeth council.
To carry out a robust and proportionate Environmental Impact Assessment for decisions
made within the Council including the anticipated impact on carbon emissions in relation
to the borough’s policy of becoming carbon neutral by 2030. This will include a
measurement of the carbon cost and net carbon footprint (where relevant) for every
spending and procurement decision. The overall cost of the carbon footprint will be
factored in to Lambeth Council’s decisions with regard to each proposal/ bid.
To review the environmental impact of the council’s estate regeneration programme and
carry out an environmental impact assessment of each estate development including
expected carbon cost so that decision makers have the full information available to
them.
To include reference to tackling the climate emergency in all Cabinet member portfolios.
To include a commitment to working towards carbon neutrality in all contracts entered
into by the Council with suppliers and contractors.
To set up a cross party member and officer committee to finalise and oversee the
implementation of the action plan to address the climate emergency and meet the
carbon neutral target set by the council.
Provide the resources to fulfill the council’s commitment to create a Citizens’ Assembly
and to work with citizens’ groups such as extinction rebellion in its creation. The Citizens’
Assembly will be funded by the council but organised by an independent team of
coordinators. It’s purpose and scope will be agreed before it begins. Participants of the
citizens’ assembly must represent the full diversity of Lambeth’s residents and evidence
will be presented to participants by a diverse range of organisations and independent
experts, including input from the wider community. The process will be completely
transparent and the council agrees to be bound by the recommendations that receive
the support of the citizens’ assembly.

Amendment1 1: Labour
Climate Emergency: Next steps
Full Council notes:

Page 67
●

●
●
●
●
●
●

In January 2019 Lambeth became the first London council to declare a climate
emergency and brought forward its target after it backed the Green Party’s motion to
become carbon neutral by 2030. Six months later and the Council has published its
Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan outlining how the council’s operations will be
carbon neutral by 2030 have still not and has set out clear plans for addressing the
emergency through a Lambeth Citizens’ Assembly. and the council’s Climate Change
Action Plan is months away from being finalised.
The council must take is taking urgent action and make the right choices in order to put
significant resources behind tackling the climate emergency.
Lambeth has the opportunity to lead is leading London in this area and is seeking
innovative, creative solutions to environmental and social problems.
The challenges we have to face are wide-ranging and require significant changes at
every level that the council operates.
The climate emergency must will be at the heart of all the council’s decision making,
moving forward.
Urgent, radical change is required and the residents of Lambeth need the opportunity to
will be actively involved.
Local Authorities are in a unique position to lead the way in tackling climate change
locally alongside residents, businesses and organisations.

Council further notes:
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●

Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) are used to predict environmental impact at
an early stage in project planning and design, to find ways and means to reduce adverse
impacts and to shape projects, providing options to a decision-maker.
EIAs must take into account inter-related socio-economic, cultural and human-health
impacts, both beneficial and adverse.
A 2016 study commissioned by the Architects for Social Housing found that demolishing
Lambeth’s housing estates would exact a high carbon price on the environment and a
conservative estimate for the embodied carbon released on demolition of Central Hill
Estate alone are around 7000 tonnes of CO2 e.
The council has already taken big strides in reducing its carbon footprint by
moving from 14 energy inefficient buildings to two new energy efficient offices.
The council is vastly improving the energy efficiency of its council homes by
carrying out an almost £500 million refurbishment of them which has already seen
23,000 homes, with a further 5,000 planned this year, benefit from new windows
and other internal works aimed at making them dry and warm.
The council has recently taken the decision to replace the boilers at 10 Lambeth
schools with new energy efficient ones which will save over 300 tonnes of carbon
each year.
That the process of shifting the council’s vehicle fleet to ultra-low emission
vehicles is well underway, and it will be fully ultra-low emission by 2030 at the
very latest.
That Lambeth Council is committed to ramping up its solar energy supplies and to
work with our community energy partners Repowering London to bring cheaper
and cleaner energy to Lambeth residents.

Page 68
●

●

●

That the council’s new Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan explains how council’s
operations will become carbon neutral by 2030 and that decisions will include a
carbon impact assessment.
The council’s baseline carbon footprint agreed through the new Corporate Carbon
Reduction Plan will be more robust and go much further than the statutory Carbon
Reduction Commitment.
That the council’s new Responsible Procurement Policy adopted by Cabinet in
May 2019 sets out achieving carbon neutrality by 2030 as one of the council’s
most important priorities when considering procurement and spending decisions.

Council resolves:
●
●

●
●

●
●
●

●

To assess the current overall carbon footprint of Lambeth council.
To carry out a robust and proportionate Environmental Impact Assessment for decisions
made within the Council including the anticipated impact on carbon emissions in relation
to the borough’s policy of becoming carbon neutral by 2030. This will include a
measurement of the carbon cost and net carbon footprint (where relevant) for every
spending and procurement decision. The overall cost of the carbon footprint will be
factored in to Lambeth Council’s decisions with regard to each proposal/ bid.
To report on the progress made against the 2030 target to Cabinet every year
To review the environmental impact of the council’s estate regeneration programme and
carry out an environmental impact assessment of each estate development including
expected carbon cost so that decision makers have the full information available to
them.
To include reference to tackling the climate emergency in all Cabinet member portfolios.
To include a commitment to working towards carbon neutrality in all contracts entered
into by the Council with suppliers and contractors.
To set up a cross party member and organisational officer committee group to finalise
and oversee the implementation of the action plan to address the climate emergency
and meet the carbon neutral target set by the council.
Provide the resources to fulfill the council’s commitment to create a Citizens’ Assembly
and to work with citizens’ groups such as extinction rebellion, Lambeth for a Cool
Planet, Lambeth Friends of the Earth and Mums for Lungs in its creation. The
Citizens’ Assembly will be funded by the council but organised by an independent team
of coordinators. It’s purpose and scope will be agreed before it begins. Participants of
the citizens’ assembly must will represent the full diversity of Lambeth’s residents and
evidence will be presented to participants by a diverse range of organisations and
independent experts, including input from the wider community. The process will be
completely transparent throughout and the recommendations that receive support
from the citizens’ assembly, along with commitments of the borough’s businesses
and partners, will be included in a borough-wide plan and the council agrees to be
bound by the recommendations that receive the support of the citizens’ assembly.

Page 69
Motion 2: Labour
LGBT+ inclusive education
This council notes that LGBT+ inclusive relationships education and relationships and sex
education is crucial to the development of young LGBT+ people, and in creating a more tolerant
and open society. Council notes the homophobic protests against inclusive education at
Anderton Park Primary in Birmingham and the serious impact these have had on pupils, staff
and the community. Council also notes the recent spate of homophobic attacks and that hate
crimes against LGBT people in England and Wales have trebled since 2014.
Council welcomes the introduction of statutory Relationships Education and Relationships and
Sex Education (RSE), which all primary and secondary schools in England respectively will be
required to teach from September 2020. Council affirms unequivocally its support for
compulsory LGBT+ inclusive Relationships Education and Relationships and Sex Education in
all state funded primary and secondary schools. Council commits to ensuring that Lambeth
schools are delivering RSE in line with new Government guidance, and calls on the Government
to fully back all schools in delivering inclusive education.
Amendment 1: Conservative
LGBT+ inclusive education
This council notes that LGBT+ inclusive relationships education and relationships and sex
education is crucial to the development of young LGBT+ people, and in creating a more tolerant
and open society. Council notes the homophobic protests against inclusive education at
Anderton Park Primary in Birmingham and the serious impact these have had on pupils, staff
and the community. Council also notes the recent spate of homophobic attacks and that hate
crimes against LGBT people in England and Wales have trebled since 2014, and commits to
actions, rather than the usual virtue-signalling by Labour councillors, by reinstating
Lambeth Council’s LGBT+ officer monitoring hate crime, who was removed by Labour
councillors in 2015.
Council welcomes the introduction of statutory Relationships Education and Relationships and
Sex Education (RSE), which all primary and secondary schools in England respectively will be
required to teach from September 2020. Council affirms unequivocally its support for
compulsory LGBT+ inclusive Relationships Education and Relationships and Sex Education in
all state funded primary and secondary schools. Council commits to ensuring that Lambeth
schools are delivering RSE in line with new Government guidance, and calls on the Government
to fully back all schools in delivering inclusive education.

Amendment 2: Green Party
LGBT+ inclusive education
This council notes that LGBTQIA+ inclusive relationships education and relationships and sex
education are is crucial to the wellbeing, safety and development of young LGBTQIA+ people,
and in creating a more tolerant and open society. Council notes the homophobic protests
against inclusive education at Anderton Park Primary in Birmingham and the serious impact
these have had on pupils, staff and the community. Council also notes the recent spate of

Page 70
homophobic and transphobic attacks and that homophobic and transphobic hate crimes
have more than doubled in England and Wales since 2014, with transphobic attacks
trebling. against LGBT people in England and Wales have trebled since 2014.
Council recognises the impact that homophobia and transphobia has on young people's
lives. One in eight young gay people have thought about taking their life. This rises
sharply to half of all transgender people. Council therefore recognises that education
that is inclusive of LGBTQIA+ identities can save lives and is fundamental to young
people's mental health.
Council notes the work of organisations and campaigners over many years to introduce
compulsory statutory Relationships Education and Relationships and Sex Education
(RSE), including Caroline Lucas MP who tabled a 10 Minute Rule Bills in Parliament in
2014, 2015 and 2016 to introduce it. Council welcomes the introduction of statutory
Relationships Education and Relationships and Sex Education (RSE), which all primary and
secondary schools in England respectively will be required to teach from September 2020, but
notes the Government missed its original target of September 2019. Council affirms
unequivocally its support for compulsory LGBTQIA+ inclusive Relationships Education and
Relationships and Sex Education in all state funded primary and secondary schools. Council
commits to ensuring that Lambeth schools are delivering RSE in line with new Government
guidance, and calls on the Government to fully back all schools in delivering inclusive education.

Motion 3: Conservative
To lobby the Mayor of London for extra police funding
This council believes that the current Mayor Sadiq Khan is failing to keep Lambeth children
safe.
Council believes that the rise in knife crime of 52% across London since Sadiq Khan became
London’s Police and Crime Commissioner is unacceptable, and that the £18 billion budget
controlled by the Mayor needs to be better spent. The Mayor’s excuses, blaming everyone but
himself, whilst increasing spending on his own staff at City Hall at a cost of £9 million, or
spending £300,000 on a pool party, are not acceptable when our children are being killed every
week.
Council shares the view on a cross-party, non-political basis, that the Mayor should, as an
emergency measure, accept the budget amendment by the Greater London Authority
Conservative Group to reallocate £82.7 million of spending in order to fund an extra 1,378 police
officers, and immediately help end the bloodshed on our streets.
Motion 4: Labour
All Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on British Muslims’ Definition of Islamophobia
This Council expresses alarm at the rise of Islamophobia in recent years across the UK, and
around the world. Council is committed to fighting Islamophobia in all of its forms. We welcome

Page 71
the All Party Parliamentary Group on British Muslims’ definition of Islamophobia, which has
been adopted by City Hall, the Labour Party, the Liberal Democrats, Plaid Cymru, Scottish
National Party and Scottish Conservatives, and backed by 750 Muslim organisations and
institutions.
The definition is: “Islamophobia is rooted in racism and is a type of racism that targets
expressions of Muslimness or perceived Muslimness.”
Council hereby adopts the above definition of Islamophobia as set out by the All Party
Parliamentary Group on British Muslims, and pledges to engage with local Muslim community
groups and organisations, and to combat this hatred. Council believes that the government
should change its current position of not adopting the APPG definition, and follow Lambeth and
the above listed organisations in formally adopting the definition, sending a clear message that
any and all forms of Islamophobia are unacceptable and will be addressed appropriately.

Amendment 1: Green Party
All Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on British Muslims’ Definition of Islamophobia
This Council expresses alarm at the rise of Islamophobia in recent years across the UK, and
around the world. Council is committed to fighting Islamophobia in all of its forms. We welcome
the All Party Parliamentary Group on British Muslims’ definition of Islamophobia, which has
been adopted by The Green Party Executive and Leadership, City Hall, the Labour Party, the
Liberal Democrats, Plaid Cymru, Scottish National Party and Scottish Conservatives, and
backed by 750 Muslim organisations and institutions.
The definition is: “Islamophobia is rooted in racism and is a type of racism that targets
expressions of Muslimness or perceived Muslimness.”
Council hereby adopts the above definition of Islamophobia as set out by the All Party
Parliamentary Group on British Muslims, and pledges to engage with local Muslim community
groups and organisations, and to combat this hatred. Council believes that the government
should change its current position of not adopting the APPG definition, and follow Lambeth and
the above listed organisations in formally adopting the definition, sending a clear message that
any and all forms of Islamophobia are unacceptable and will be addressed appropriately.

Motion 5: Labour
Britain needs a people’s vote, and a general election
Council believes:
That three years on from the Conservative government’s decision to hold an unnecessary
referendum on Britain’s membership of the European Union, parliament is stuck in a Brexit
deadlock and all other pressing issues that a government would usually be working on have
fallen by the way side.

Page 72
That Brexit has had a severely detrimental effect on the UK – negatively affecting our economy,
our standing in the world, and the EU citizens residing in the UK who contribute so much to our
borough, our city and our country.
That Lambeth residents, 79% of which voted to remain, are being failed by government: the
Tories are trying to push through a No Deal Brexit, which nobody voted for, and services like
adult social care continue to edge close to breaking point as the government refuses to do
anything.
Council notes that in this never-ending Brexit nightmare, the country finds itself between a rock
and a hard place as the choice for the next Prime Minister, is between Jeremy Hunt MP, who
has done his best to dismantle our beloved National Health Service, and Boris Johnson MP,
who was responsible for misleading the British public to win the referendum campaign.
Council believes that neither candidate will be able to solve the Brexit deadlock, and will not
command the faith of the British people to attempt to do so having being elected by 0.2 percent
of the population.
Council believes that the British people deserve a General Election to bring an end to nine years
of Conservative austerity and misrule.
Councils reaffirms its support for a people’s vote, in order to put the choice back in the hands of
the British people.
Council further believes that remain should be an option on the ballot in order to give the
country the chance to put a stop to Brexit and stay as a member of the European Union.

Amendment 1: Green Party
Britain needs a people’s vote, and a general election
Council believes:
That three years on from the Conservative government’s decision to hold an unnecessary
referendum on Britain’s membership of the European Union, parliament is stuck in a Brexit
deadlock and all other pressing issues that a government would usually be working on have
fallen by the way side.
That even though Brexit has not happened the referendum result and its aftermath has
had a severely detrimental effect on the UK – negatively affecting our economy, our standing in
the world, and the EU citizens residing in the UK who contribute so much to our borough, our
city and our country.
That Lambeth residents, 79% of which voted to remain, are being failed by government: the
Tories are trying to push through a No Deal Brexit, which nobody voted for, and services like
adult social care continue to edge close to breaking point as the government refuses to do
anything.
Council notes that in this never-ending Brexit nightmare, the country finds itself between a rock
and a hard place as the choice for the next Prime Minister, is between Jeremy Hunt MP, who

Page 73
has done his best to dismantle our beloved National Health Service, and Boris Johnson MP,
who has racist views, lied repeatedly and who was responsible for misleading the British
public to win the referendum campaign.
Council believes that neither candidate will be able to solve the Brexit deadlock, and will not
command the faith of the British people to attempt to do so having being elected by 0.2 percent
of the population.
Council believes that the British people deserve a General Election to bring an end to nine years
of Conservative austerity and misrule.
Councils reaffirms its support for a people’s vote, in order to put the choice back in the hands of
the British people.
Council further believes that remain should be an option on the ballot in order to give the
country the chance to put a stop to Brexit and stay as a member of the European Union.
Council further believes that if the new Prime Minister pushes for a no-deal Brexit Article
50 should be revoked.

_______________________

This page is intentionally left blank

